Annual Report 2013

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited



Trafalgar^{*}

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Annual Financial Report

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Contents

	Page
Results at a Glance	2
Chairman's Report on Operations	3
Board of Directors & Senior Management	6
Corporate Governance	7
Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited Financial Report	17
Security Holder Information	86
Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 Concise Accounts	87
Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 Concise Accounts	103
Corporate Directory	117

Results at a Glance

Results Summary	FY2013	FY2012
	\$'000s	\$'000s
Rent from investment properties	9,779	10,641
Finance income	318	602
Other income	41	248
Total revenue	10,138	11,491
Property outgoings	(2,072)	(2,057)
Corporate costs	(937)	(1,453)
Employment costs	(1,185)	(1,743)
Finance costs	(1,660)	(2,654)
Operating profit	4,284	3,584
Fair value adjustments on investment properties	(10,156)	(2,377)
Impairments of development projects & other assets	(428)	194
Profit (loss) on disposal of investment properties	(20)	67
Net profit (loss) before tax	(6,320)	1,468
Income tax expense	<u>-</u>	-
Net profit (loss) after income tax	(6,320)	1,468
Gearing (% of Total Assets)	16.3%	33.4%
Net Tangible Assets (\$ per Security)	0.58	0.73
Distributions (¢ per Security)	7.5	52.0

Chairman 's Report

Overview

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Trafalgar Corporate Group ("Group or TGP"), it is my pleasure to present the Group's annual report for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

During the year the Group has continued its stated strategy of disposing of assets to close the gap between its trading price and its underlying net asset backing and, after allowing for debt repayment requirements, distributing funds back to securityholders. A total of 7.5 cents per security was distributed during FY13.

The Group settled the sale of the Mort Street building in Canberra in May 2013, with \$13.5 million of the proceeds used to repay debt.

The Group has now closed out all mezzanine funding provided to development projects and the only development project yet to be finalised is the residential development project at Rhodes NSW, which has been physically completed and is in the final stages of winding up and distributing the remaining proceeds to the Group.

Post balance date, the Group has settled the sale of the Granville property in line with book value, which allowed for a further reduction in debt to \$5.49 million.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group's trading price on the ASX was \$0.46 per security, a discount of circa 20% to the Group NTA of \$0.58 per security.

Financials

The Group revenue declined by 11.7% from \$11.5 million in FY2012 to \$10.1 million in FY2013, largely reflecting the sale of investment properties during the reporting period.

The Group operating profit before tax, fair value adjustments and impairments and after finance costs, improved from \$3.6 million in FY2012 to \$4.3 million in FY2013. The improvement in operating profit was attributable to a 32.8 % reduction in corporate and employment costs and lower finance costs following debt repayments which more than offset the decline in revenue.

The Group recorded a net loss after tax of \$6.3 million in FY2013, compared to a net profit of \$1.5 million for FY2012 mainly due to the loss of fair value for Investment Properties.

The basic loss for the year of 7.4 cents per security compares with a positive result of 1.7 cents per security for Fiscal 2012. The net tangible assets (NTA) as at 30 June 2013 was \$0.58 per security (after distributions of 7.5 cents per security during FY2013), compared to \$0.73 per security as at 30 June 2012.

The 15 cents per security decline in NTA in the past financial year was largely attributable to the 7.5 cents per security distributions made in FY2013, and the 7.4 cents per security net loss mentioned above.

The Board and management continued to focus on the Group's capital management during FY2013 and the following was achieved:

- Total debt was reduced from \$32.6 million as at 30 June 2012, down to \$10.3 million as at 30 June 2013;
- The Group gearing was 20.6% as at 30 June 2013, compared with 35.8% reported as at 30 June 2012.

The Westpac loan facility expiry date remains at March 2014, with the expectation it will be paid out before December 2013.

Investment Properties Update

There are now only 2 assets remaining in the Group's investment portfolio; being the Australian Taxation Office, Hurstville and the warehouse building in Goulburn.

The Group's strategy in relation to the remaining investment assets is as follows:

- Continue to pursue the renewal of the Australian Taxation Office lease for the Hurstville building;
- Appoint new agents to dispose of the Goulburn building.

Development Properties Update

The Group continued its exit from development activities and the following was achieved during FY2013:

- Completed the exit from both the Beverley and Nudgee development projects;
- Achieved Practical Completion of the Rhodes Joint Venture with dedication of roads and public lots to statutory authorities completed post year end.

Investment Portfolio Valuations

Updated directors' valuations, supported by independent valuations (other than the Granville building, which was valued by directors at the net sale price agreed in a Heads of Agreement with the purchaser of the building) were applied to all investment assets. The following table profiles the investment portfolio over the past 4 years.

	FY2013	FY2012	FY2011	FY2010
Total Valuation \$million	\$53.9	\$78.6	\$102.9	\$221.6
Weighted Core Capitalisation Rate	9.39%	9.59%	9.31%	8.54%
Revaluation/(devaluation) \$million	(\$10.2)	(\$2.4)	(\$3.9)	(\$7.5)

The major contributing factor to the decline in value of the investment portfolio was the impact of the reduced lease term of the ATO building. The fair value adjustment for this building for Fiscal 2013 was \$7.1 million, of which \$1.4 million related to the write-down of over rent received on the ATO Hurstville building.

Development Property Portfolio Valuations

The only remaining development asset is the Rhodes project which had a carrying value, as at 30 June 2013, of \$0.8 million.

Proposed 360 Capital Acquisition

As previously outlined to securityholders, the Board has always been open to looking at other opportunities to close the gap between its trading price and its underlying net asset backing, including potential corporate transactions.

To this end, on 20 August 2013, TGP entered into a conditional Security Sale Agreement with the Securityholders of the stapled entities of the 360 Capital Property Group, comprising of 360 Capital Investment Trust (ARSN 141 872 844) and 360 Capital Property Limited (ACN 146 484 433) ("360 Capital"), whereby TGP has agreed to purchase 100% of 360 Capital through a scrip for scrip offer to 360 Capital securityholders (with a Cash Alternate), subject to (among other things) approval by TGP's Securityholders..

As part of the acquisition of 360 Capital, TGP will raise \$70.8 million through a fully underwritten institutional conditional placement of TGP Securities at \$0.59 per Security (together the "Transaction").

The expanded Group ("New 360") will be a real estate business consisting of:

 Approximately \$860 million of assets under management, including the ASX-listed 360 Capital Industrial Fund (ARSN 099 680 252) ("Industrial Fund"); • 10 funds/syndicates owning 28 properties diversified across Australia and the key office and industrial sectors;

• \$90.9 million of co-investments in (including loans to) predominantly managed funds to align New 360 with its

fund investors; and

• \$48.8 million in direct real estate ownership primarily in one (1) direct real estate office building leased to the Australian Taxation Office (\$44.0 million value) with the opportunity to secure earnings through extending the

current lease beyond February 2015.

New 360's income will be derived from three main sources from underlying real estate investments:

• Fees derived from the management of real estate funds (forecast to be \$4.7 million in FY14);

• Distributions from co-investments in (including loans to) New 360's managed funds (forecast to be \$7.4 million

in FY14); and

Rental income from direct property investment (expected to be \$6.8 million in FY14).

We expect that New 360's forecast earnings and distributions per New 360 Security will be attractive relative to the broader A-REIT sector:

• FY14 operating earnings per New 360 Security are expected to be 5.9 cents, which equates to a 10.0%

earnings yield on the Issue Price;

FY14 distribution per New 360 Security is expected to be 5.0 cents, which equates to an 8.5% distribution yield

on the Issue Price.

If approved by Securityholders, the Transaction will transform TGP into a diversified real estate investment and funds management group. Following completion, TGP will be renamed the "360 Capital Group". The acquisition of 360 Capital also meets the stated strategy of closing the NTA gap with the Group's securities now trading on the

ASX at a premium of NTA of circa 14% to the Group's June 2013 NTA.

In concluding I would like to acknowledge the efforts of my fellow directors and management during and especially

post year end. I would also like to thank securityholders for their continuing support during the year.

The Board is confident the 360 Capital transaction will be approved by securityholders and look forward to the next

chapter of the Group under the banner of 360 Capital Group.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Dated at Sydney this 19th day of September 2013

5

Your Board & Senior Management

Board of Directors & Senior Management

Graham E Lenzner (Independent Director)

Graham has had a career spanning four decades, with particular emphasis on funds management and financial markets. Graham has also worked as an Executive for some years in the insurance, building products and construction industries. Graham was an Executive Director of the Armstrong Jones Group for 12 years, the last 4 years as Joint Managing Director. Other previous roles include Finance and Deputy Managing Director of Aquila Steel, General Manager Finance and Investments of MMI Insurance Limited and Director Head of Equities with Schroder Darling Management Limited. Graham has served on the Board of a number of public and private companies. Graham is currently Chairman of Device Technologies Australia Pty Limited and Chairman of Heemskirk Consolidated Limited. Graham holds a Bachelor of Economics and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Graham is the Audit Committee Chairman.

Tony R Pitt (Non-Executive Director)

Tony is the founder and Managing Director of 360 Capital Property Group, a Sydney based property investment and funds management organisation with funds under management of approximately \$1.0 billion. Through TT Investments Pty Limited, Tony is a significant Securityholder in Trafalgar Corporate Group, with 28.17% of the Group's securities as at 30 June 2013. Tony has in excess of 15 years experience in property valuation, investment, funds management, development and advisory in both the listed and unlisted property sectors. Tony was previously an Executive Director of Mirvac Funds Management Ltd (formerly James Fielding Funds Management Limited), Bankminster Properties Limited and Travelodge Hotel Group. Tony also held positions at Paladin Australia Limited, Jones Lang LaSalle and Richard Ellis. Tony holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Property) and a Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment. Tony is the Nominations and Remuneration Committee Chairman.

David van Aanholt (Independent Chairman)

David has over 20 years of experience in the property and funds management industry. Prior to establishing his own property group in 2007, David was the Chief Executive Officer (Asia Pacific) of the ASX listed Goodman Group (previously known as Macquarie Goodman). In that role David was responsible for Goodman's operations in Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong and Singapore. David worked for Goodman for more than a decade and before joining them was a Fund Manager at Paladin Australia Limited (acquired by Deutsche Bank) and an Associate Director of CDH Properties (Acquired by KPMG). David holds a Bachelor of Business (Land Economy), Post Graduate Diploma in Management and a Masters in Business Administration. David is an Independent Director of the Kennards Self Storage Group and 360 Capital Property Group and is a Fellow of the Australian Property Institute.

Peter J Norris

(Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

Peter joined Trafalgar as Financial Controller & Company Secretary in 2001. Peter has more than 30 years of General Business, Financial Management and Company Secretarial experience and has been involved with ASIC Managed Investment Legislation for more than 10 years. As such Peter assumes the responsibilities of Compliance Officer with respect to Trafalgar's ASIC Financial Services Licence. Peter's knowledge base stretches across many industries including property, manufacturing, financial services, direct retail, marketing and aviation. Peter has a Bachelor of Economics and is a member of CPA Australia as well as an affiliate of Chartered Secretaries Australia.

Corporate Governance Statement

Trafalgar and Corporate Governance

Trafalgar Corporate Group ("Trafalgar") is a stapled group consisting of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("TCGL") and Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited ("TMIL") as Responsible Entity for Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 and Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4. Both TCGL and TMIL have identical boards of directors and hereafter the term Board should be read as referring to these boards.

Trafalgar's Board and management have a set of values that recognise our responsibilities to all stakeholders, including security holders, customers, employees, our business partners, the community and the environment.

The Board places the highest standards of integrity and ethics with regard to its corporate governance practices and continually reviews and updates Trafalgar's principles and practices to ensure its compliance with best practice corporate governance in order to meet its obligations as a responsible and professional organisation.

The Australian Securities Exchange ("ASX") has published its Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations. Trafalgar adhered to these guidelines for all of Fiscal 2013 with the exception of:

- a) Principle 2 Structure the board to add value, in particular Recommendation 2.1 a majority of the board should be independent directors; and
- b) Principle 3 Promote ethical and responsible decision-making, in particular as it relates to gender diversity.

During the period May 2012 to May 2013 the Board of Trafalgar had been made up of 3 external non-executive directors, only one of which declared himself as independent.

In addition, while an Audit Committee and a Nomination and Remuneration Committee operate, Trafalgar did not comply with Corporate Governance Principle 4 and Principle 8, with respect to the appropriate composition of members of the above committees during the above period due to the makeup of the Trafalgar Board, as outlined above.

From May 2013 with the appointment of G E Lenzner as an independent director the make up of the Board was 2 independent and 2 non-independent directors.

From 21 August 2013 to the present with the resignation of G S Charny as a non-independent non-executive director, Trafalgar is now fully compliant with Principle 2, 4 and 8 of the Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations.

With respect to Principle 3, while a gender diversity policy is in place, in light of the winding down of Trafalgar since 2010, the opportunity to implement the policy has not occurred as no new employees have been hired since March 2008. In fact staff numbers have been progressively reduced as the scope of activities diminishes.

In accordance with the best practice recommendations, Trafalgar has posted copies of its governance practices in the corporate governance section of our website: www.trafalgarcorporate.com including copies of relevant policies and terms of reference.

Role of the Board of Directors

The primary role of the Board is to ensure financial viability, performance and enhancement of value to security holders.

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of Trafalgar, including:

a) Defining the powers reserved for the Board;

- b) Setting objectives, values and strategies;
- c) Ensuring that Trafalgar Corporate Group (ASX Code "TGP") adheres to appropriate standards and values and that proper policies are developed and followed in relation to:
 - i. Compliance with laws;
 - ii. Safety, health and environment matters;
 - iii. Human capital;
 - iv. Corporate governance; and
 - v. Operational excellence;
- d) Selecting or confirming the appointment of the CEO, together with delegating distinct and clear functions, responsibility and accountabilities and subsequently regularly monitoring, reviewing and assessing the performance of the CEO;
- e) Setting and ensuring implementation of all corporate governance matters and subsequently regularly monitoring, reviewing and assessing those matters;
- f) Ensuring appropriate changes to corporate governance matters are made where necessary;
- g) Monitoring performance of executive management;
- Nominating committees and determining their membership, delegating clear functions and objectives, authority, responsibility and accountabilities to those committees and subsequently regularly monitoring, reviewing and assessing the performance of each committee against their objectives;

Keeping under review the general short, medium and long-term progress and development of Trafalgar in light of the political, economic and social environment in which it operates;

- Determining desired financial objectives and approving Trafalgar's budget annually and subsequently monitoring the financial state and performance of Trafalgar (including investment and financial plans) against the objectives and budget and, where appropriate, communicating to stakeholders;
- j) Determining that Trafalgar's accounts are true and fair;
- k) Determining that satisfactory arrangements are in place for auditing Trafalgar's financial affairs, including selecting and recommending any changes to auditors as required at general meetings;
- Capital management including issues, calls on, forfeiture of shares, declaration of dividends or distributions and share buy-backs, capital raising and debt facilities;
- m) Managing the interests of the directors, conflicts and related party transactions;
- n) Managing matters pertaining to shareholders including meetings, communications and relations;
- Setting and maintaining the disclosure policy including continuous disclosure, approval of accounts and reports and period disclosure;
- p) Approving major changes in the organisation, shape or direction of Trafalgar, including entry of new fields of operation and departure from those which are no longer appropriate;
- q) Approving major expenditures and transactions with other companies or parties including for example, acquisitions, divestments, restructures, joint ventures and significant supply arrangements;
- r) Supporting the CEO in the discharge of his/her responsibilities;
- s) Ensuring appropriate credit policies and other risk management policies and procedures are in place and implemented and regularly monitoring, reviewing and assessing those areas;
- t) Giving approval and/or support, as appropriate, to the most senior appointments at Trafalgar and ensuring that adequate career development, succession and remuneration arrangements exist for them; and
- Reviewing the Board's structure and performance and having evaluated individual director performance from time to time, making decisions on new appointments to the Board.

Role of Management

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") is responsible for the overall management and financial performance of Trafalgar. The CEO manages the organisation in accordance with the strategy, plans, policies and budgets approved by the Board to achieve the agreed goals.

Board Composition and Size

The Trafalgar Board is currently comprised of two independent and one non-independent non-executive directors. The Chairman is an independent and non executive director.

The Board's Charter requires the Chairman's and directors' positions to be reviewed every three (3) years.

Appointment of Directors

Nominations of new directors, recommended by the Nominations Committee, are considered by the full Board. The Nominations Committee's role is to assist the Board in assessing the skills required and identifying candidates for potential appointment to the Board.

The Nominations Committee considers potential directors taking into account the range of skills and experience required in relation to the:

- Current composition of the Board;
- Need for independence, and
- Strategic direction and progress of Trafalgar.

The Board assesses nominated directors against a range of criteria including experience, professional skills, personal qualities and their capacity to commit to the needs of Trafalgar.

Director Independence

All of the non executive directors are independent of management, with the independent non executive directors being free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with (or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with) the exercise of their independent judgement and their ability to act in the best interests of the Group.

Chairman's Appointment and Responsibilities

The Chairman is appointed by the Board from amongst the non-executive directors.

The Chairman presides over the official business of Trafalgar and the Board and his duties include:

- a. Ensuring the Board performs its roles and functions;
- b. Managing the relationship between the Chief Executive Officer and the Board;
- c. Managing the business of the Board and presiding over its meetings, resolving differences between Directors and seeing that decisions are reached promptly and are appropriately recorded and implemented;
- d. Ensuring that all relevant issues are on the agenda and that all Directors receive timely and relevant information to enable them to be effective members;
- e. Ensuring that each director fully participates in the Board's activities;
- f. Recommending to the Board for consideration the membership and functions of committees of the Board;
- g. Maintaining a regular dialogue and mentoring relationship with the Chief Executive Officer;

- h, Liaise with the Chairman of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee and the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee to ensure the core issues delegated to these committees are addressed:
- i. Promoting the interests of Trafalgar as a whole in relation to Trafalgar's security holders, stakeholders, governments, other public organisations, other companies and the public generally; and
- j. Performing annual director and Board evaluation.

Conduct of the Board

The Board schedules 9 regular meetings each year and will also meet whenever necessary to carry out its responsibilities.

When conducting Trafalgar Board business, directors have a duty to question, request information, raise any issue of concern, fully canvass all aspects of any issue confronting the Group, disclose any potential for conflict and vote on any resolution according to their own judgement.

Conflict of Interest

Directors are required to continually monitor and disclose any actual, potential or perceived conflict of interest that may arise.

Directors must:

- Disclose to the Board and Company Secretary any actual or potential conflict of interest that may arise as soon as the situation is recognised;
- Take all necessary and reasonable steps to resolve any conflict of interest within an appropriate period, if required by the Board or deemed appropriate by that director; and
- Comply with the Corporations Act 2001 requirements in relation to disclosure of interests and restrictions on voting.

The same requirements exist for related party transactions, including financial transactions with Trafalgar. Related party transactions are reported in writing to the Board.

Access to Information

All directors have unrestricted access to Trafalgar's records and information and are encouraged to access members of senior management at any time to request relevant information.

Directors are entitled to seek independent advice at Trafalgar's expense after advising the Chairman. Any advice received must be made available to all directors.

Chief Executive Officer and CFO Assurance

The Board receives regular reports about the financial condition and operating results of Trafalgar and its controlled entities. The Board has received and considered the annual certification from the CFO in accordance with ASX Best Practice Recommendation 7.3 and the Corporations Act 2001, stating that:

- The Group's financial statements present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
 position and performance, and comply with all relevant accounting standards, in all material respects;
- To the best of their knowledge and belief, the risk management and internal compliance and control systems are sound, appropriate and operating efficiently and effectively in all material aspects, and
- Nothing has come to their attention since 30 June 2013 that would indicate any material change to their statement.

These statements provide a reasonable but not absolute level of assurance about risk management, internal compliance or control systems, and do not imply a guarantee against any adverse events or more volatile outcomes in the future.

Committees

The Board has established committees to consider certain issues and functions in further detail. The Chairman of each committee reports on any matters of substance at the next board meeting. All committee papers and minutes are provided to the Board.

There are currently two standing committees:

- Audit & Risk Committee; and
- Nominations & Remuneration Committee

Other committees may be formed from time to time, as required. Each committee has its own terms of reference, approved by the board and reviewed annually, with additional review when appropriate. The Chairman and CEO attend committee meetings where appropriate.

During FY2013, Members of Board Committees were:

	Audit & Risk	Nominations & Remuneration
David van Aanholt (i)	\checkmark	Chair
Graham Lenzner (ii)	Chair	$\sqrt{}$
Garry Charny (iii)	X	X
John Green (iv)	X	X
Tony Pitt	$\sqrt{}$	$\sqrt{}$

- (i) Independent Chair 23 May 2013
- (ii) Independent Chair from 23 May 2013
- (iii) Resigned 23 May 2013
- (iv) Resigned 19 March 2013

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Committee assists the Board in its responsibility to oversee the nomination and remuneration of the directors and senior executives of Trafalgar.

The Committee is responsible for:

- Making recommendations regarding the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and reporting succession plans for senior executives to the Board;
- Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the proposed remuneration strategy and package for the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Executive Officer's direct reports and other senior executives;
- Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment and remuneration of the directors, including attending to the following matters:
 - Assessing the skills required by the Board;
 - o From time to time, assessing the extent to which the required skills are present on the Board;
 - Establishing processes for the identification of suitable candidates for appointment to the Board;
- Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board concerning general remuneration and recruitment principles for the Group (including incentives schemes, bonuses and similar matters);

- Supervising the Group's obligations on matters such as superannuation and other employment benefits and entitlements; and
- Any external consultant engaged to assist with the above is appointed by the Chairman and any report received is marked for the attention of the Chairman.

Directors' and Executives' Remuneration

Comprehensive information on Trafalgar's remuneration policies and practices are contained in the Remuneration Report on page 25 of the Directors' Report.

Board Performance Assessment

The Chairman annually conducts an evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole and each director individually and takes accounts of the following matters:

- The ability of the Board to achieve the goals and objectives set by it;
- The support of the Board to senior management;
- The Board's ability to interact and work effectively;
- The Board's ability to ensure corporate governance and whether the Board delivered value to security holders through performance;
- The director's focus on Trafalgar as a whole (including acting in the best interest of Trafalgar security holders);
- Their performance on designated matters;
- The director's individual contribution to and participation in specific areas;
- Their interaction with other directors;
- Their skill and experience level, their judgment and accountability; and
- Their market awareness.

The directors, independent of the Chairman, meet every two years to evaluate the Chairman and consider the following:

- The Chairman's focus on Trafalgar as a whole (including acting in the best interest of Trafalgar security holders);
- The performance of the Chairman in relation to Board matters;
- · His ability to steer the Board and to bring matters to a satisfactory conclusion; and
- His interaction with other directors.

Retirement of Directors

Directors are required to not hold office for a continuous period in excess of 3 years without re-election and submit for re-election after fulfilling a 3 year term.

A director appointed to a casual vacancy by the Board will hold office until the next AGM when the director is required to stand for election. This election will be in addition to any rotational requirements.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board to discharge its corporate governance responsibilities in exercising due care, diligence and skill in relation to:

Compliance with:

- · reporting of financial information;
- · application of accounting policies;
- financial management;
- internal control systems;
- risk management systems;
- · business policies and practices;
- · protection of Trafalgar's assets; and
- compliance with applicable laws, ASX Listing Rules, regulations, standards and best practice guidelines or recommendations;

In particular, as it relates to any ASIC Registered Managed Investment Scheme (Scheme) managed by a Trafalgar controlled Responsible Entity (RE), the Committee will:

- Monitor to what extent the RE complies with the Compliance Plan for a Scheme and report on its findings to the Board of the RE;
- Report to the Board of the RE any breaches of the Corporations Act involving a Scheme, or any breaches of a Scheme's Constitution; and
- Assess at regular intervals whether the Compliance Plan for a Scheme is adequate, report to the Board of the RE on the assessment and make recommendations to the Board of the RE about any changes to a Scheme's Compliance Plan.
- 1. Improve the credibility and objectivity of the accounting process, including financial reporting;
- 2. Provide a formal forum for communications between the Board and senior financial management;
- 3. Improve the effectiveness of internal control systems and be a forum for improving communications between the Board and the internal and external auditors;
- 4. Facilitate the maintenance of the independence of the external auditor;
- 5. Improve the quality of internal and external reporting of financial and non-financial information; and
- 6. Foster an ethical culture throughout the Group.

Auditor Independence

The independence of the external auditor is of particular importance to security holders and the Board. The Board has adopted a Charter of Audit Independence that is reviewed regularly to keep in line with emerging practices.

The key points to the Charter include:

- Rotation of the senior audit partner every five years;
- Annual confirmation from the auditor that it has satisfied all professional regulations relating to auditor independence
- Fees for non-audit services not exceeding the agreed audit fee in any one year, except in exceptional circumstances; and
- Specific exclusion of the audit firm from work which may give rise to a conflict of interest.

In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and, based on the advice of the Audit Committee, the directors have satisfied themselves that the provision of non-audit services during the year by the auditors is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001.

Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and control across the business. It also has responsibility for establishing risk management policies and acceptable levels of risk for Trafalgar, and ensuring these are implemented.

The system draws upon the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Revised Supplementary Guidance to Principle 7 and seeks to provide a consistent approach to identifying, assessing and reporting risks, whether they be related to the Group's performance, reputation, safety, environment, internal control, compliance or other risk areas.

Specific monitoring and evaluation of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal control environment are delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee. The committee approves Trafalgar's accounting policies, reporting practices and production of financial statements and monitors the application of appropriate management controls.

It considers external audit reports and reviews the adequacy of Trafalgar's procedures and internal controls in order to monitor financial risk and major operational risks.

Risk and Compliance processes and reporting procedures provide assurance to the Board and the Audit and Risk Committee that the preparation of the financial statements and the control systems underlying them are adequate.

Appropriate risk management structures and procedures exist throughout the organisation and the Chief Executive Officer has ultimate responsibility to the Board for the risk management and control framework.

The risk management framework enables the business to identify and assess risks and controls, respond promptly and appropriately and continue to monitor risks issues as they evolve. Risk and compliance information is reported at each Audit and Risk Committee meeting. Areas of significant business risk are also highlighted in the business plan presented to the Board by the Chief Executive Officer each year.

The Board reviews and approves the parameters under which significant business risks will be managed before adopting the business plan. Arrangements put in place by the Board to monitor risk management include:

- Regular monthly reporting to the Board in respect of operations, financial position and new contracts;
- Reports by the chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and circulation of their minutes;
- Presentations throughout the year of appropriate members of the Group's management team on particular risks and measures adopted to manage or mitigate the risk;
- Increased monitoring of the Group's liquidity and status of renewals of finance facilities;
- Formal risk assessments are required as part of business case approvals for projects or initiatives of a significant nature; and
- Provision for any director to request that operational and project audits be undertaken.

Management has reported to the Board on the effectiveness of the Group's management of its material business risks. The CFO has provided a signed confirmation to the Board representing that the declaration

provided in accordance with Section 295 of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects.

Compliance

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate measures are undertaken to manage compliance with the laws, regulators, contracts, industry codes, internal standards and policies applicable to Trafalgar's operations.

Compliance is a key element of risk management.

Specific responsibility for the monitoring of compliance has been delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee. Consistent with Trafalgar's risk management approach, Trafalgar's compliance measures are subject to monitoring and continuous improvement. Any compliance issues or incidents are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Code of Conduct

Trafalgar has adopted a code of conduct outlining the standards of personal and corporate behaviour of all directors, officers and employees. This code reinforces a strong ethical culture for the benefit of all stakeholders.

All directors and employees must always act ethically, honestly, responsibly and diligently in full compliance with all governing laws and in the best interest of the Group, respecting investors and colleagues and treating them in a courteous and professional manner.

All directors and employees must avoid conduct that is deceptive or unfair.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is provided to all directors and employees on joining Trafalgar.

Trafalgar is committed to employee related policies such as Equal Employment Opportunity and Occupational Health and Safety and endorses providing a safe and equitable work environment.

Trafalgar's Code of Conduct is available on Trafalgar's website.

Share Trading Policy

Trafalgar's Share Trading Policy applies to directors, senior management and other employees and any other person associated with any of them, trading in Trafalgar and other securities.

Trafalgar's Share Trading Policy aims to:

- Protect stakeholders' interests at all times;
- Ensure that directors and employees do not use any information they possess for their personal advantage, or to the detriment of Trafalgar; and
- Ensure directors and employees comply with insider trading legislation.

Trading in Trafalgar's securities by directors, executives and employees is restricted to the six week period after the dates on which Trafalgar announces its half-yearly and full year results to the ASX and the date on which Trafalgar holds its Annual General Meeting. Clearance must be obtained from the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. All other times are considered 'closed periods'.

Directors, senior management and other employees may not engage in short term trading (that is 90 days or less) in Trafalgar securities.

Trafalgar's Share Trading Policy is available on Trafalgar's website.

Communication with Shareholders

Trafalgar endeavours to ensure that communication with security holders and other stakeholders is undertaken in an open, regular and timely manner so that the market has sufficient information to make informed investment decisions based on the operations and results of the Group.

Trafalgar is committed to transparent and quality communication to security holders through continuous disclosure.

Information is communicated to security holders through distribution of half yearly and full year reports and other communications as required. All significant information is posted on Trafalgar's website as soon as it is disclosed to the ASX.

Trafalgar's Continuous Disclosure Policy is available on Trafalgar's website.

Environmental Regulation

Trafalgar is committed to achieving a high standard of environmental performance. The Board considers issues associated with the environmental impact of Trafalgar's operations and, together with management, monitors Trafalgar's compliance with statutory requirements, as well as published policies and procedures.

Trafalgar's operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation, particularly in relation to its property development activities. Trafalgar undertakes an environmental due diligence and risk assessment of all properties it acquires. The Board monitors environmental performance by setting objectives, monitoring progress and identifying remedial action where required.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

All security holders are encouraged to attend and/or participate in Trafalgar's AGM. Security holders can attend in person or send a proxy as their representative. Unless unavailable, all directors and senior management attend the meeting, along with the external auditor.

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

ABN 18 113 569 136

Annual Financial Report For the year ended 30 June 2013

Contents

		Page
Direc	etors' report	19
Audit	ors' independence declaration	32
Cons	solidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income	33
Cons	olidated statement of changes in equity	35
Cons	solidated statement of financial position	36
Cons	solidated statement of cash flows	38
Notes	s to the consolidated financial statements	
1	Statement of significant accounting policies	39
2	Financial risk management	50
3	Distributions and dividends	52
4	Rental income	52
5	Finance income and finance expenses	53
6	Employee benefits expense	53
7	Auditors' remuneration	54
8	Income tax (benefit) expense	54
9	Assets held for sale	55
10	Segment reporting	55
11	Earnings per share	58
12	Cash and cash equivalents	59
13	Trade and other receivables	59
14	Other financial assets	60
15	Other current assets	60
16	Available for sale investments	60
17	Investment properties	61
18	Investments accounted for using equity method	63
19	Property, plant and equipment	66
20	Other non current assets	67
21	Trade and other payables	67
22	Interest bearing loans and borrowings	67
23	Provisions	68
24	Other current liabilities	68
25	Issued capital	69
26	Financial instruments	69
27	Capital and other commitments	73
28	Contingent assets and liabilities	74
29	Consolidated entities	75
30	Business combinations	76
31	Reconciliation of net profit (loss) to net cash inflows from operating activities	76
32	Related parties	77
33	Parent entity disclosures	81
34	Events subsequent to balance date	82
Direc	etors' declaration	83
Indep	pendent auditors' report	84

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and its Controlled Entities

Directors' Report

For the year ended 30 June 2013

The Directors present their report together with the annual financial report of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and the consolidated entities ("Trafalgar Corporate Group" or "Group") for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the independent auditor's report thereon. The financial report of Trafalgar Corporate Group comprises the consolidated financial reports of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited (the deemed parent entity), Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 and Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 and their respective controlled entities.

Directors

The Directors of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("Company" or "TCGL"), at any time during or since the end of the year are ("the Directors"):

	Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited
Name	Period of Directorship
Non-Executive	
Garry S Charny	
John R Green	Appointed Director 13 November 2008, Resigned 21 August 2013
	Appointed Director 1 October 2009, Resigned 19 March 2013
Graham E Lenzner	Appointed Chairman 1 May 2012, Resigned 19 March 2013
Tony R Pitt	Appointed Director 9 May 2013
David van Aanholt (Chairman)	Appointed Director 19 November 2009
,	Appointed Director 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 19 March 2013

Formation of Trafalgar Corporate Group

On 19 July 2005 the unitholders of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 (TOF 4) and Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 (TPF 12) approved the merger of TOF 4, TPF 12 and the Company. Under the merger arrangements a TOF 4 unit, a TPF 12 unit and a Company share were stapled so that the share and the units comprise one security, which is traded on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX). Investors in Trafalgar Corporate Group are entitled to distributions from TOF 4 and TPF 12 and dividends from the Company. The units and share are stapled together and cannot be traded separately.

Principal Activities

During the financial year the principal activities of Trafalgar Corporate Group were:

- a) investment in income producing commercial and industrial properties; and
- b) property development (direct and financing)

The Board continued to implement its strategy to close the gap between the security price and net tangible assets by pursuing an orderly and opportunistic realisation of the Group's investment property assets. This strategy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in November 2010. Significant progress has been made with the asset realisation process and closing the gap between security price and net tangible assets. The Board will only consider investment property sales that achieve the best outcome for Securityholders and will continue to consider other options that may provide a greater return.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of Trafalgar Corporate Group during the year.

Review of Operations

The annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013 has been prepared in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("AIFRS"). The financial performance of Trafalgar Corporate Group is as follows:

	For the year ended 30 June 2013	For the year ended 30 June 2012
Revenue and other income (\$'000) (Loss) profit attributable to Securityholders of Trafalgar Corporate Group (\$'000)	10,138 (6,320)	11,480 1,468
Basic loss per company share (ϕ) Basic (loss) earnings per stapled security (ϕ) Dividends and distributions provided or paid by Trafalgar Corporate Group (\$'000)	(1.9) (7.4) 6,401	(0.8) 1.7 44,383
	As at 30 June 2013	As at 30 June 2012
Net assets (\$'000) Number of fully paid stapled securities on issue ('000) Net assets per fully paid stapled security (\$)	49,862 85,352 0.58	62,583 85,352 0.73

The Directors have undertaken an assessment of the fair value of the Group's investment property assets at 30 June 2013 having regard to independent valuations. The Directors have determined a decrease in the carrying amount of \$10.16 million (30 June 2012: decrease of \$2.38 million) is to be brought to account in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year.

The following major financial transactions occurred during the financial year:

- (a) The Group settled the sale of 4 Mort Street Canberra for \$14.75 million on 31 May 2013 with the majority of net sale proceeds being used for debt reduction.
- (b) The Group exchanged a contract for the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville for \$5.3 million with settlement expected in August 2013.
- (c) The Group received \$5.2 million in net proceeds from development asset realisations during the year and brought to account in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income a net impairment of \$0.3 million. The remaining development asset has a carrying value of \$0.8 million as at 30 June 2013.
- (d) The Rhodes joint venture achieved practical completion of the project with the only outstanding issue remaining being the dedication of roads and public lots to statutory authorities. On 24 April 2013, a legal claim was lodged with the Federal Court against the Rhodes joint venture alleging Breach of Contract with respect to the sale of a Super Land Lot. Initial hearings have been held and are ongoing with the next being scheduled for 1 November 2013
- (e) The Group provided or paid a total of 7.5 cents per security in distributions during the year. Further information in regards to these distributions is provided below.

Dividends & Distributions

The Company did not declare any dividends during the year ended 30 June 2013 or up to the date of this report (30 June 2012: Nil). Distributions declared by TPF 12 & TOF 4 during the year were as follows:

	For the year ended		For the	For the year ended	
	30 J	30 June 2013		June 2012	
	\$'000	Cents per Unit	\$'000	Cents per Unit	
Distribution - paid 21 July 2011 (TPF 12)	-	-	17,070	20.00	
Distribution - paid 16 September 2011 (TOF 4)	-	-	4,267	5.00	
Distribution - paid 11 November 2011 (TOF 4)	-	-	5,975	7.00	
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012 (TOF 4)	-	-	3,414	4.00	
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012 (TPF 12)	-	-	2,561	3.00	
Distribution - paid 28 June 2012 (TPF 12)	-	-	11,096	13.00	
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012 (TPF 12)	1,707	2.00	-	-	
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012 (TOF4)	427	0.50	-	-	
Distribution - paid 13 March 2013 (TPF 12)	3,414	4.00	-	-	
Distribution - paid 31 July 2013 (TPF 12)	853	1.00	-	-	
	6,401	7.50	44,383	52.00	

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

Key changes in Trafalgar Corporate Group's state of affairs during the year were as follows:

Financing Facilities

The loan facility with Westpac Banking Corporation, provided to the Group via a special purpose borrowing vehicle, was reduced from \$32.56 million to \$10.26 million during the year. For further information on financing facilities refer to note 22.

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of Trafalgar Corporate Group that occurred during the financial year under review other than those listed above or elsewhere in the Directors report.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

The Group continues to implement its strategy to close the gap between the security price and net tangible assets by pursuing an orderly and opportunistic realisation of the Group's investment property assets. The extension of the lease to the Australian Taxation Office ("ATO") on the Woniora Road, Hurstville property is key to this strategy. The current 10 year lease (with 2 x 5 year options) expires February 2015. The ATO is required to advise by February 2014 if they wish to exercise the first 5 year option. The Group is in discussions with the tenant with respect to their intentions. A material change (positive or negative) in the fair value of the ATO Hurstville building may occur depending on the actual outcome of the current lease negotiations.

The Board remains focused on maximising the value of the Group's securities. As there is currently no timetable or certainty around reaching agreement with the ATO on a new lease, it may be sometime before a realisation strategy is possible for this asset. Therefore, apart from the realisation strategy, the Board may also consider other strategies to improve security price if it is in the best interest of Securityholders. In this regard, please refer to the events subsequent to reporting date, where further details are provided about the Group's potential acquisition of the 360 Capital Property Group.

22

Information on Directors and Company Secretary

Graham E Lenzner

(Independent Director)

Graham has had a career spanning four decades, with particular emphasis on funds management and financial markets. Graham has also worked as an Executive for some years in the insurance, building products and construction industries. Graham was an Executive Director of the Armstrong Jones Group for 12 years, the last 4 years as Joint Managing Director. Other previous roles include Finance and Deputy Managing Director of Aquila Steel, General Manager Finance and Investments of MMI Insurance Limited and Director Head of Equities with Schroder Darling Management Limited. Graham has served on the Board of a number of public and private companies. Graham is currently Chairman of Device Technologies Australia Pty Limited and Chairman of Heemskirk Consolidated Limited. Graham holds a Bachelor of Economics and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Graham is the Audit Committee Chairman.

Tony R Pitt

(Non-Executive Director)

Tony is the founder and Managing Director of 360 Capital Property Group, a Sydney based property investment and funds management organisation with funds under management of approximately \$1.0 billion. Through TT Investments Pty Limited, Tony is a significant Securityholder in Trafalgar Corporate Group, with 28.17% of the Group's securities as at 30 June 2013. Tony has in excess of 15 years experience in property valuation, investment, funds management, development and advisory in both the listed and unlisted property sectors. Tony was previously an Executive Director of Mirvac Funds Management Ltd (formerly James Fielding Funds Management Limited), Bankminster Properties Limited and Travelodge Hotel Group. Tony also held positions at Paladin Australia Limited, Jones Lang LaSalle and Richard Ellis. Tony holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Property) and a Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance and Investment. Tony is the Nominations and Remuneration Committee Chairman.

David van Aanholt

(Independent Chairman)

David has over 20 years of experience in the property and funds management industry. Prior to establishing his own property group in 2007, David was the Chief Executive Officer (Asia Pacific) of the ASX listed Goodman Group (previously known as Macquarie Goodman). In that role David was responsible for Goodman's operations in Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong and Singapore. David worked for Goodman for more than a decade and before joining them was a Fund Manager at Paladin Australia Limited (acquired by Deutsche Bank) and an Associate Director of CDH Properties (Acquired by KPMG). David holds a Bachelor of Business (Land Economy), Post Graduate Diploma in Management and a Masters in Business Administration. David is an Independent Director of the Kennards Self Storage Group and 360 Capital Property Group and is a Fellow of the Australian Property Institute.

Peter J Norris

(Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

Peter joined Trafalgar as Financial Controller & Company Secretary in 2001. Peter has more than 30 years of General Business, Financial Management and Company Secretarial experience and has been involved with ASIC Managed Investment Legislation for more than 10 years. As such Peter assumes the responsibilities of Compliance Officer with respect to Trafalgar's ASIC Financial Services Licence. Peter's knowledge base stretches across many industries including property, manufacturing, financial services, direct retail, marketing and aviation. Peter has a Bachelor of Economics and is a member of CPA Australia as well as an affiliate of Chartered Secretaries Australia.

Attendance at Meetings by Directors

The number of Board meetings and Directors' attendance at those meetings during the year are set out below:

	Воз	ard	Audit & Risk	Committee	Nominat Remuneration	
	Meetings Attended	Meetings Held	Meetings Attended	Meetings Held	Meetings Attended	Meetings Held
Garry S Charny	12	13	4	4	1	1
John R Green	7	7	3	3	-	-
Graham E Lenzner	3	3	-	-	-	-
Tony R Pitt David van Aanholt	12 6	13 6	4 1	4 1	1 -	1 -

Directors' Interests

The following tables show each Director's interest, and or their respective related entities' interest (if any), in Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited as at the beginning and at the end of the year:

	Held at 1 July 2012	Acquisitions	Sales	Held at 30 June 2013
Fully paid securities				
Directors				
Garry S Charny	-	-	-	-
John R Green (Resigned 19 March 2013)	-	-	-	n/a
Graham E Lenzner (Appointed 9 May 2013)	-	-	-	-
Tony R Pitt *	21,479,009	2,560,556	-	24,039,565
David van Aanholt (Appointed 19 March 2013)	-	-	-	-

	Held at 1 July 2011	Acquisitions	Sales	Held at 30 June 2012
Fully paid securities				
Directors				
Garry R Sladden (Resigned 1 May 2012)	-	-	-	n/a
Garry S Charny	-	-	-	-
John R Green	-	-	-	-
Tony R Pitt *	20,000,000	1,479,009	-	21,479,009

^{*} Pentagon Financial Services Pty Limited ("PFS") is the registered holder of 21,479,009 securities. TT Investments Pty Limited indirectly owns 100% of PFS. TT Investments Pty Limited ATF the TT Investment Trust is the registered holder of 2,560,556 securities. Tony Pitt is a Director of TT Investments Pty Limited and a beneficiary of the TT Investment Trust.

Remuneration Report

The Directors of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited present the Remuneration report for the consolidated entity. The report summarises key compensation policies for the year ended 30 June 2013 and provides detailed information on the compensation for Directors' and other key management personnel.

The Remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:

- 1. Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration;
- 2. Service agreements; and
- 3. Details of remuneration

The specific remuneration arrangements described in this report apply to the Chief Executive Officer and the key management personnel as defined in AASB 124 and to the Company Secretary as defined in section 300A of the *Corporations Act*.

1. Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee advises the Board on compensation policies and practices generally, and makes specific recommendations on compensation packages and other terms of employment for Non-Executive Directors and other Senior Executives.

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee operates under the delegated authority of the Board. The Nominations and Remuneration Committee's Charter is available on the Corporate Governance page of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited's website at www.trafalgarcorporate.com

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is chaired by Tony Pitt with Garry Charny also holding a position in the Committee.

The responsibilities of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee are to review market practices and recommend to the Board:

- 1. Remuneration policies of the Company;
- 2. Remuneration structure and levels for Non-Executive Directors; and
- 3. Remuneration packages of the Chief Executive Officer and other Senior Executives.

The Chief Executive Officer or designate, in turn, reviews the performance and compensation of the other Senior Executives and makes recommendations on these to the Committee. The Chief Executive Officer's recommendations recognise the differing responsibilities and skills of each Executive as well as different market influences that may affect their total compensation package.

1.1 Remuneration Principles

(a) Non-Executive Directors' fees

Securityholders in general meetings approve the aggregate pool available for the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The current aggregate pool limit for Directors' fees payable to Non-Executive Directors of \$750,000 per annum was approved by Securityholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting.

Directors' fees paid to each Non-Executive Director are agreed by the Board, based on recommendations by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee.

1.1 Remuneration Principles (continued)

(a) Non-Executive Directors' Fees (continued)

The annual fees payable to Non-Executive Directors are as follows:

- Base fee of \$75,000 plus additional fees of:
 - o \$Nil for Chairing the Audit and Risk Committee;
 - o \$Nil for Chairing the Nominations and Remuneration Committee;
- The Chairman is paid a Board fee at a higher rate than the other Non-Executive Directors to reflect additional workloads and responsibilities. The Chairman is paid \$95,000 per annum.

In addition the Non-Executive Directors receive superannuation contributions at the statutory Superannuation Guarantee Levy rate.

Retirement allowances for Directors

Non-Executive Directors do not receive any retirement allowance upon retirement from the Board.

(b) Executive Remuneration

The Board recognises that the Group's performance is dependent on the quality of its people. To successfully achieve its financial and operating objectives, the Group must be able to attract, motivate and retain highly skilled Executives who are dedicated to the interests of its Securityholders.

The compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, other key management personnel and other staff members may include payments and or allocations under the following categories:

- Fixed remuneration, which comprises cash salary
- Performance linked compensation
- Short term employee benefits including short term cash bonuses, annual leave and other incidental benefits;
- Post employment benefits, comprising superannuation contributions;
- Long term employee benefits including long service leave; and
- Termination benefits as defined in individual employment contracts and as required by law.

Details of each category above are set out below:

Fixed remuneration

Cash salaries are set at a level to attract and retain suitably qualified people to the Group. The salaries are benchmarked to market and reviewed annually by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee, taking account of market conditions, external surveys and advice, skills availability and the Group and individual performance.

Performance linked compensation

Performance linked compensation includes both short-term and long-term incentives, and is designed to reward key management personnel for meeting or exceeding their financial and personal objectives. No key management personnel are currently receiving performance linked compensation as part of their remuneration package.

Remuneration Report (continued)

1.1 Remuneration Principles (continued)

(b) Executive Remuneration (continued

Short term employee benefits

For short term cash bonuses, the performance targets and reward levels are reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer or designate and are approved by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee. The payment of bonuses is approved by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee following an assessment of the Group's financial performance for the previous 12 months as compared to budgeted results. Failure to achieve budget may result in no bonus payments being approved by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee. No key management personnel are currently receiving short term bonuses as part of their remuneration package.

Other incidental benefits include provision of car parking at office locations.

Post employment benefits

All salaried employees have the opportunity to direct their superannuation to a fund of their choice as required by Federal legislation. The Group contributes up to 9% of salary in line with Superannuation Guarantee levy requirements.

Termination/Retention benefits

The Board is mindful that in order to carry out its strategy of opportunistically realising assets so as to maximise the capital returned to Securityholders, the Group must retain the staff that can implement this strategy. With this is mind, in September 2010, the Board made amendments to the employment contracts of key management personnel to include retention benefits. Under the amended terms of their employment contracts, Messrs Williams and Norris (CFO & Company Secretary) become entitled to 9 months remuneration and 6 months remuneration respectively should their employment be brought to an end by Trafalgar for any reason other than misconduct, incapacity or performance, or where grounds for summary termination or serious misconduct exist. These changes were considered necessary in order to ensure their knowledge and expertise was retained, as Group asset sales were realised and the Group's activities are wound down.

2. Service Agreements

Service agreements are entered into for all persons employed by the Group. Notice periods of six months for the CEO, CFO/Company Secretary and Financial Controller, and one month for all other staff apply to these service agreements and no notice provisions apply where termination occurs as a result of misconduct or serious breach of agreement. Compensation arrangements for early termination of an Executive's contract for reasons outside the control of the individual or where the Executive is made redundant may give rise to a severance payment at law.

The terms of the service agreements for key management personnel employed at 30 June 2013 are as follows:

	Peter J Norris Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary
Date of agreement	1 July 2005
Term of agreement	Open-ended
Non-solicitation of other personnel	12 months
Termination notice - Trafalgar	4 months
Termination notice - Employee	6 months

27

Remuneration Report (continued)

2. Service Agreements (continued)

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no key management personnel have entered into a material contract with the Group since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving key management personnel interests existing at year end.

3. Details of Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel of the Group are set out in the following table:

Remuneration Report (continued)

3. Details of Remuneration (continued)

	Short-Term Employee Benefits							
Name	Year	Cash Salary	Short-Term Cash Bonus \$	Non Monetary Benefits \$	Other Benefits \$	Superannuation \$	Long Service Leave \$	Total \$
Non-Executive Directors								
Garry S Charny	2013	75,000	-	-	-	6,750	-	81,750
John R Green (Chairman - Resigned 19 March 2013)	2012 2013	75,000 69,019	- -	- -	-	6,750 6,212	-	81,750 75,231
Graham E Lenzner (Appointed 9 May 2013)	2012 2013	95,833 10,887	-	-	-	8,625 980	-	104,458 11,867
, , ,	2012	-	- -	- -	- -	-	<u>-</u> -	-
Tony R Pitt	2013 2012	75,000 75,000	-	-	-	6,750 6,750	-	81,750 81,750
Garry R Sladden (Chairman - Resigned 1 May 2012)	2013	-	-	-	-	· -	-	-
David van Aanholt (Chairman - Appointed 19 March 2013)	2012 2013	121,391 27,070	-	-	-	10,925 2,436	- -	132,316 29,506
	2012	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Sub Total Non-Executive Directors	2013	256,976	-	-	-	23,128	-	280,104
	2012	367,224	-	-	-	33,050	-	400,274
Key Management Personnel								
Braith H Williams - CEO ¹ (Redundant 29 March 2013)	2013 2012	361,988 434,225	<u>-</u> -	10,683 9,313	112,500 56,250	12,353 15,775	5,279 7,108	502,803 522,671
Peter J Norris - CFO & Company Secretary ²	2013 2012	236,130 236,825	- -	3,592 3,335	23,650 23,650	16,470 15,775	3,814 3,847	283,656 283,432
Totals by each component	2013	855,094	-	14,275	136,150	51,951	9,093	1,066,563
	2012	1,038,274	<u>-</u>	12,648	79,900	64,600	10,955	1,206,377
Totals by category	2013		1,005,51			51,951	9,093	1,066,563
	2012		1,130,82			64,600	10,955	1,206,377

^{1.} Other Benefits includes Termination/Retention benefits of \$112,500. Refer to 1.1 of the Remuneration report for further information on Termination/Retention benefits. Braith Williams was made redundant on 29 March 2013.

^{2.} Other Benefits includes accrued Termination/Retention benefits of \$21,250 and a \$2,400 Car Allowance. Refer to 1.1 of the Remuneration report for further information on Termination/Retention benefits.

^{3.} Short-Term Employee Benefits.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers

In the 2013 financial year a premium of \$61,524 (30 June 2012: \$59,272) was paid in respect of a Directors and Officers Liability insurance policy for the benefit of the above Directors and key management personnel. Effective from 1 April 2006 the Directors and Officers Liability insurance policy held by Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited was endorsed to cover the risk previously provided for in the Investment Managers insurance policy taken out by the Responsible Entity, namely Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited (TMIL).

The Company has not indemnified the auditor of the Group.

The Company and Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited have entered into a Deed of Access, Indemnity and Insurance with each Director and the Chief Executive Officer. The indemnity is subject to restrictions prescribed in the Corporations Act 2001. In summary the Deed indemnifies Directors to the fullest extent permitted by law against liabilities arising as a result of acting as a Director or Officer. An indemnity is also provided for related legal costs.

Non-Audit Services

During the year KPMG, the Group's auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory duties. The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and is satisfied that the provision of the non-audit services during the reporting period by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the *Corporation Act 2001* for the following reasons:

- The Board's own review conducted in conjunction with the Audit and Risk Committee, having regard to the Board's policy with respect to the engagement of the Company's auditor to ensure the services do not impact on the integrity and objectivity of the auditor.
- The declaration of the independence provided by KPMG, as auditor of the Company.
- The fact that none of the non-audit services provided by KPMG during the year involved reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Group, KPMG, and its related practices for non-audit services provided during the year are set out below. Refer to note 7 for details of amounts paid for audit services by the Group.

The following non-audit services were provided by the Group's auditor, KPMG. The Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the *Corporations Act 2001*. The nature and scope of each type of non audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

	30 June 2013 \$	30 June 2012 \$
Services other than statutory audit:		
Taxation services	45,522	103,178
Audit of regulatory returns	5,000	4,725
Other assurance services	12,500	20,780

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

2B Factory Street Granville

Settlement of the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville occurred on 14 August 2013 with net proceeds being used for debt reduction within the Group.

There are no further matters or circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in this financial report or current and future financial periods.

Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 32 and forms part of the Directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Rounding off

The Company is of a kind of entity referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Directors' report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

This report is made with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 there have been:

- (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPM6

KPMG

Paul Thomas

Partner

Sydney

27 August 2013

	Note	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Revenue and other income			, , , , ,
Rent from investment properties	4	9,779	10,641
Finance income	5	318	602
Other income		41	237
Total revenue and other income		10,138	11,480
Rates, taxes and other property outgoings		(2,072)	(2,057)
Consultants and professional fees		(367)	(681)
Management and administration expenses		(541)	(737)
Depreciation	19	(29)	(35)
Employee benefits expense	6	(1,185)	(1,743)
Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment properties	17	(10,156)	(2,377)
Net (loss) gain on disposal of investment properties		(20)	67
Reversal of impairment of available for sale investments	16	-	4
Reversal of impairment of equity accounted investments	18	778	1,514
Impairment of third party loans receivable	14	(1,055)	(1,324)
Impairment of other non current assets	19	(151)	-
Results from operating activities		(4,660)	4,111
Finance expenses	5	(1,660)	(2,654)
Share of profit on investments accounted for using the equity method	18	-	11
(Loss) profit before income tax expense		(6,320)	1,468
Income tax expense	8	-	-
(Loss) profit for the year		(6,320)	1,468
Other comprehensive income for the year		-	-
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year		(6,320)	1,468

		30 June	30 June
	Note	2013 \$'000	2012
(Loss) profit attributable to:		\$ 000	\$'000
Equity holders of the company		(1,613)	(666)
Minority interest		(4,707)	2,134
	-		
(Loss) profit for the year		(6,320)	1,468
	-		_
Total comprehensive (loss) income attributable to:			
Equity holders of the company		(1,613)	(666)
Minority interest		(4,707)	2,134
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year	-	(6,320)	1,468
Basic and diluted (loss) per company share	11	(1.9)c	(0.8)c

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

		Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited			Minority Interest TPF 12 and TOF 4			Total Equity \$'000
	Note	Capital \$'000	Retained losses \$'000	Total equity \$'000	Capital \$'000	Retained losses \$'000	Total equity \$'000	
Balance at 1 July 2012	25	(3,092)	(1,986)	(5,078)	104,089	(36,428)	67,661	62,583
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year		-	(1,613)	(1,613)	-	(4,707)	(4,707)	(6,320)
Transactions with Securityholders in their capacity as Securityholders								
Distributions to unitholders	3	-	-	-	(6,401)	-	(6,401)	(6,401)
		-	-	-	(6,401)	-	(6,401)	(6,401)
Balance at 30 June 2013		(3,092)	(3,599)	(6,691)	97,688	(41,135)	56,553	49,862

		Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited			M TP	Total Equity \$'000	
	Note	Capital \$'000	Retained losses \$'000	Total equity \$'000	Capital \$'000	Retained Total losses equity \$'000 \$'000	
Balance at 1 July 2011	25	(3,092)	(1,320)	(4,412)	148,472	(38,562) 109,910	105,498
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year		-	(666)	(666)	-	2,134 2,134	1,468
Transactions with Securityholders in their capacity as Securityholders							
Distributions to unitholders	3	-	-	-	(44,383)	- 44,383)	(44,383)
		-	-	-	(44,383)	- 44,383)	(44,383)
Balance at 30 June 2012		(3,092)	(1,986)	(5,078)	104,089	(36,428) 67,661	62,583

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	Note	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	12	7,516	10,714
Trade and other receivables	13	209	1,156
Assets held for sale	9	9,583	5,100
Other financial assets	14	-	3,698
Other current assets	15	663	484
Total current assets	_	17,971	21,152
Non current assets			
Investment properties	17	42,906	71,748
Investments accounted for using the equity method	18	800	2,591
Property, plant and equipment	19	17	192
Other non current assets	20	1,094	1,752
Total non current assets	_	44,817	76,283
Total assets	_	62,788	97,435
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	21	649	679
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	22	10,237	8,100
Provisions	23	1,207	645
Other current liabilities	24 _	833	929
Total current liabilities	_	12,926	10,353
Non current liabilities			
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	22	_	24,331
Provisions	23	_	168
Total non current liabilities	_	-	24,499
Total liabilities	_	12,926	34,852
Net assets	_	49,862	62,583

	Note	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Equity attributable to Shareholders of the Company Capital	25	(3,092)	(3,092)
Retained losses		(3,599)	(1,986)
Total Equity attributable to Shareholders of the Company	•	(6,691)	(5,078)
Minority interests Equity attributable to			
Unitholders of TPF 12 and TOF 4			
Capital		97,688	104,089
Retained losses		(41,135)	(36,428)
Total Minority interests Equity attributable to		56,553	67,661
Unitholders of TPF 12 and TOF 4	•		
Total equity		49,862	62,583

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	Note	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Cash flows from operating activities			
Cash receipts from customers		11,437	13,077
Cash paid to suppliers and employees		(5,460)	(8,003)
Interest received		294	598
Interest paid		(1,540)	(2,555)
Net cash from operating activities	31	4,731	3,117
Cash flows from investing activities			
Payments for investment properties and improvements		-	(40)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties		14,717	22,042
Payments for plant and equipment		(5)	-
Capital distributions from equity accounted investments		2,569	19,474
Capital distributions from available for sale investments		-	433
Other financial assets - advances		(176)	(174)
Other financial assets - repayments		2,815	550
Net cash from investing activities		19,920	42,285
Cash flows from financing activities			
Repayment of borrowings		(22,301)	(13,208)
Distributions paid		(5,548)	(44,383)
Net cash from financing activities		(27,849)	(57,591)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents held		(3,198)	(12,189)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		10,714	22,903
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	12	7,516	10,714

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

1 Statement of Significant Accounting Polices

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("the Company") is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 'Trafalgar Corporate Group' or the 'consolidated entity') and Trafalgar Corporate Group's interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.

The consolidated financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on the 27th day of August 2013.

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this consolidated financial report are:

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ("AASB") and the Corporations Act 2001.

International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") form the basis of Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by the AASB, being Australian equivalents to IFRS ("AIFRS"). The financial report complies with IFRS and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.

(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and its subsidiaries are for-profit entities for the purpose of preparing the financial report.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment properties which are stated at their fair value and investments accounted for using the equity method which has been subject to impairment testing.

The Company is an entity of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 (updated by CO 05/641 effective 28 July 2005 and CO 06/51 effective 31 January 2006) and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Directors' report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In accordance with the Stapling Deed executed on 8 June 2005, each party to the deed (Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("TCGL"), Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 ("TPF 12") and Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 ("TOF 4")) have undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the other party and or its subsidiaries. At balance date, TCGL had a net asset deficiency of \$18.3 million (30 June 2012: net asset deficiency of \$15.6 million).

As TPF 12 and TOF 4 have the capacity to guarantee the net asset deficiency, the Parent Entity disclosures in note 33 have been prepared on a going concern basis having regard to the Group's bank facilities available until March 2014; the Group's compliance with bank debt covenants, current assets exceeding current liabilities and our expectation that the Group will be able to meet all its obligations as and when they fall due over the next 12 months.

(b) Basis of Preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Australian Accounting Standards that have a significant effect on the financial report and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are disclosed in note 1(x).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in this consolidated financial report.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all entities in the consolidated entity.

Certain new or amended Accounting Standards have been published that are not mandatory for this reporting period. Based on management's assessment, the recently issued or amended Accounting Standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the amounts recognised or disclosures made in this financial report when restated for the application of the new or amended Accounting Standards.

The consolidated entity has applied the amendments contained in the *Corporations Amendment (Corporate Reporting Reform) Bill 2010* in the preparation of this financial report which allows for removing the requirement in consolidated financial statements to include full parent entity information. A note containing information about the Parent Entity has been included at note 33.

(c) Basis of Consolidation

Stapled group

Trafalgar Corporate Group, which is domiciled in Australia, was established for the purpose of facilitating a joint Australian Securities Exchange ("ASX") listing of the Company and its controlled entities, including Trafalgar Corporate Pty Limited ("TCL"), TOF 4 and TPF 12.

On 20 July 2005, Trafalgar Corporate Group was formed by stapling together the shares of the Company and units of TOF 4 and TPF 12. For the purpose of statutory reporting, the stapled entity reflects the consolidated entity being the Company (the deemed acquirer of TOF 4 and TPF 12 and the parent of the stapled entity) and its controlled entities being TOF 4 and its controlled entities and TPF 12 and its controlled entity. The net assets and profit or loss of TOF 4 and TPF 12 are disclosed as Minority Interest as the equity is 100% owned by stapled Securityholders not directly owned by the Company.

The Constitutions of TOF 4 and TPF 12 and the Articles of Association of the Company ensure that, for so long as these entities remain jointly listed, the number of units in TOF 4 and TPF 12 and the number of shares in the Company shall be equal and that unitholders and shareholders be identical. Both the Responsible Entity of TOF 4 and TPF 12 and TCGL must at all time act in the best interest of Trafalgar Corporate Group.

The stapling arrangement will cease upon the earlier of the winding up of TOF 4, TPF 12 or TCGL, or any of the entities terminating the stapling arrangement.

(c) Basis of Consolidation (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations including the acquisition of controlled entities. The purchase method views a business combination from the perspective of the combining entity that is identified as the acquirer. The acquirer purchases net assets and recognises, at fair value, the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed, including those previously recognised by the acquiree. As the stapling arrangement does not involve one of the combining entities obtaining an ownership interest in another combining entity, no goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in the net fair value of an acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over acquisition cost is recognised in relation to the stapling arrangement. Goodwill is only recognised to the extent it represents costs incurred in relation to formation of the stapling arrangement.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the consolidated entity's interest in the entity with adjustments made to 'Investments accounted for using the equity method' and 'Share of profits (losses) of investments accounted for using the equity method'.

Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Gains and losses are recognised when the contributed assets are consumed or sold by the associates and jointly controlled entities or, if not consumed or sold by the associates and jointly controlled entity, when the consolidated entity's interest in such entities is disposed of.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when an entity has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the financial report from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the consolidated entity has joint control, established by contractual agreement.

Jointly controlled entities

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in jointly controlled entities, including partnerships, are accounted for using equity accounting principles. Investments in joint venture entities are carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount.

The consolidated entity's share of the jointly controlled entity's net profit or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date joint control commences until the date joint control ceases. Other movements in reserves are recognised directly in the consolidated reserves.

Jointly controlled operations and assets

Interests of the consolidated entity in jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets are brought to account by recognising in the financial statements the assets it controls, the liabilities that it incurs, the expenses it incurs and its share of income that it earns from the sale of goods or services by the joint venture.

(c) Basis of Consolidated (continued)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the consolidated entity has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. The consolidated financial statements includes the consolidated entity's share of the total recognised gains and losses of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the consolidated entity's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the consolidated entity's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the consolidated entity has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

(d) Segment Reporting

Operating segments

The consolidated entity presents operating segments based on the same basis as that internally provided to the CFO, who is the consolidated entity's chief operating decision maker.

An operating segment is a component of the consolidated entity that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the consolidated entity's other components. All operating segments' operating results are regularly reviewed by the consolidated entity's CFO to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CFO include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, head office expenses and income tax assets and liabilities. Capital expenditure for a segment is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire, property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other than goodwill.

(e) Revenue and Other Income

Revenues arising in the ordinary course of activities are recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of the amount of goods and services tax ("GST") levied.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

Rent from investment properties

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term where leases have fixed increments otherwise on an accrual basis. Rental income not received at reporting date is reflected in the statement of financial position as a receivable or if paid in advance, as rents in advance. Lease incentives granted are recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as a reduction of lease income.

Lease incentives provided by TPF 12 and TOF 4 to lessees are deducted from the fair value of investment property and are disclosed as separate assets under 'Other current' and 'Other non current assets'. Such assets are amortised over the respective periods to which the lease incentives apply, either using a straight-line basis, or a basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis and if not received at balance date, is reflected in the statement of financial position as a receivable.

(e) Revenue and Other Income (continued)

Dividends and distributions

Revenue from dividends and distributions from controlled entities and other investments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on the date the entity's right to receive payment is established, being the date when they are declared by those entities.

Dividends and distributions received out of pre-acquisition reserves are eliminated against the carrying amount of the investment and not recognised in revenue.

Fee income

Revenue from services rendered including management and arrangement services are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance date. The proportion of services provided is assessed by reference to the work performed.

Net gain or loss on the sale of non current assets

The net gain or loss on the sale of non current assets is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually when a contract for sale becomes unconditional or at settlement.

The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the net proceeds on disposal.

(f) Income Tax

Income tax on the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting, nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend.

Under current Australian income tax legislation, the Trusts are not liable for income tax, provided that taxable income and taxable capital gains are fully distributed to unitholders each year. Accordingly income tax amounts disclosed in this financial report relates only to the companies within Trafalgar Corporate Group.

(f) Income Tax (continued)

Tax consolidation

The Company and its wholly owned entities, and TCL and its wholly owned entities had each formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2005 and 1 July 2003 respectively and each group was taxed as a single entity from that date. The two head entities within the tax consolidated groups, the Company and TCL formed one tax group in September 2007, the same month that the Company acquired 100% ownership of TCL.

(g) Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties which are held for the purpose of producing rental income, capital appreciation, or both.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost including any acquisition costs. Investment properties are subsequently stated at fair value at each balance date with any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period. An external, independent valuer, having an appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued, values the individual properties when considered appropriate as determined by management in accordance with a Board approved valuation policy. These external valuations are taken into consideration when determining the fair value of the investment properties. The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without prejudice.

In assessing fair value of investment properties, valuations (whether internal or external and independent) are prepared by considering the aggregate of the net annual rents receivable from the properties and, when relevant, associated costs. A yield which reflects the specific risks inherent in the net cash flows is then applied to the net annual rentals to arrive at the property valuation.

Valuations reflect, when appropriate, the type of tenants actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting of vacant accommodation and the market's general perception of their credit worthiness; the allocation of maintenance and insurance responsibilities between lessor and lessee; and the remaining economic life of the property. It has been assumed that whenever rent reviews or lease renewals are pending with anticipated reversionary increases, all notices and where appropriate counter notices have been served validly and within the appropriate time.

(h) Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity's assets, other than investment properties (refer note 1(g)), and deferred tax assets (refer note 1(f)), are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, unless an asset has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(h) Impairment of Assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to cash generating units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of the consolidated entity's receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.

Impairment of receivables is not recognised until objective evidence is available that a loss event has occurred. Significant receivables are individually assessed for impairment.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

Reversals of impairment

Impairment losses are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist and there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount.

(i) Operating Lease Payments

Payments required under operating leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

(j) Intangible Assets

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and is not amortised but is tested annually for impairment (refer note 1 (h)).

(k) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received and are stated at amortised cost.

(I) Interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis. Transaction costs are amortised over the term of the borrowing and the balance of transactions costs is amortised immediately upon a borrowing being substantially renegotiated or repaid in full.

(m) Goods and Services Tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority are classified as operating cash flows.

(n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred except to the extent that they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to reach the stage of their intended use or sale. In these circumstances, borrowing costs are capitalised to the cost of the assets until the assets are ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

(o) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and at call deposits

(p) Employee Benefits

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the balance date are recognised as current provisions in respect of employees' services provided to reporting date and are calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration wage and salary rates that the consolidated entity expects to pay at reporting date.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using the rates attached to the Commonwealth government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, to the estimated future cash outflows.

Bonus entitlements

A liability is recognised for employee benefits in the form of employee bonus entitlements which are determined before the time of completion of the financial report. Liabilities for employee bonus entitlements are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(p) Employee Benefits (continued)

Retention arrangements

Liability for retention payments are accrued over the expected retention period.

Defined contribution superannuation funds

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

(q) Trade Receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at their cost less impairment losses (refer note 1 (h)).

(r) Assets Held for Sale

Assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. The assets must meet the following criteria:

- the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition and is highly probable;
- an active program to locate a buyer and complete a sale must have been initiated;
- the asset must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value;
 and
- the sale should be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.

Immediately before applying the classification as held for sale, the measurement of the assets is brought up to date in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

Investment properties which are classified as held for sale are carried at fair value as the measurement provisions of AASB 5 *Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinuing Operations* do not apply to investment properties.

Impairment losses determined at the time on initial classification of the non current asset as held for sale are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, even when there is a revaluation. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement.

(s) Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment (excluding land and buildings) are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation (refer note 1 (t)) and impairment losses (refer note 1 (h)).

(t) Depreciation

All assets having limited useful lives are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition and depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually for appropriateness.

The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Office equipment 2-40 years Furniture & fittings 4-13 years

(u) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the consolidated entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate the risks specific to the liability.

Dividends and distributions

A provision for dividends and distributions payable is recognised in the reporting period in which the dividends and distributions are declared, determined, or publicly recommended by the Directors on or before the end of the financial period, but not distributed at balance date.

(v) Issued Capital

Issued capital represents the amount of consideration received for stapled securities issued by the consolidated entity. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of any related income tax benefit.

(w) Vendor Liabilities

Vendor liabilities are discounted to their present value at the consolidated entity's cost of capital. Interest is accrued over the period it becomes due and is recorded as an increase to the vendor liability.

(x) Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Management discussed with the Audit and Risk Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the consolidated entity's critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the future financial years are discussed below:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are:

Valuation of investment properties

The Directors ascertain the fair value of investment properties after having regard to independent valuations which are undertaken annually. These valuations are determined through the use of the properties' lease profile and direct market comparison and include the valuers' assessments of appropriate capitalisation rates and discounted cash flow rates. The valuations are in accordance with accounting policy note 1 (g). A material change (positive or negative) in the fair value of the ATO Hurstville building may occur depending on the actual outcome of the current lease negotiations, refer to note 17 for further information.

Equity accounted investments

The Group assesses equity accounted investments for impairment using the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value in use methods. In order to assess the investments the Group uses financial records available in regard to investments, independent valuations, underlying market value of their assets where available and financial forecasts to project financial outcomes

(y) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments encompass investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Recognition of financial instruments occurs when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Derecognition of financial instruments occurs when the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or if the Group transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, any directly attributable transaction costs. Following initial recognition non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.

Held to maturity investments

If the Group has the intention and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, they are classified as held to maturity. Measurement of held to maturity investments is at their amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Available for sale financial assets

The Group's investments in equity securities and certain debt securities are classified as available for sale financial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses on available for sale monetary items are recognised directly in a separate component of equity. When an investment is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

An instrument is classified at fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income if it is held for trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income if the Group manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy. Upon initial recognition attributable transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when incurred. Financial instruments at fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Other

Other non-derivative financial instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

(ii) Share capital

Stapled securities

Stapled shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of the securities, options and conversion of partly paid securities are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect.

2 Financial Risk Management

Overview

Trafalgar Corporate Group's activities expose it to a range of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk. The Group's Board of Directors has responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework ensuring the effective management of risk.

The Board has established the Audit and Risk Committee to develop risk management principles and policies and monitor their implementation. Policies are established to identify and analyse the financial risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and monitor the risks and adherence to limits. The Audit and Risk Committee meets regularly to review risk management policies and systems and ensure they reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers.

Credit risk relating to the Group's receivables (primarily tenants in the Group's investment properties) is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The majority of the Group's revenue is from one government agency, representing 92% of revenue (30 June 2012: 81%), other federal and state government departments, representing 0% of revenue (30 June 2012: 12%) and listed or large corporates representing 8% of revenue (30 June 2012: 7%). The Group is comfortable with its customer concentrations as the largest customer is a Federal Government department and non-government rental income is partly secured by bank guarantees and receivables are being collected within payment terms.

The Group has established a process to analyse each new potential customer for creditworthiness before the Group enters into a transaction with them. Customers are invoiced monthly in advance and management regularly monitors that settlement terms are adhered to.

Mezzanine and vendor finance loans to third parties are at fixed interest rates, if impaired interest is no longer recognised in the accounts. The Group maintains a close ongoing relationship with the third parties involved and monitors the progress of developments where applicable to protect its investment. Detailed project feasibility reports are updated regularly and provide comfort as to the ongoing creditworthiness of the development projects. The Group holds either 1st or 2nd mortgages over land and fixed and floating charges over the development assets. At balance date there are no mezzanine or vendor finance loans owed to the Group.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Board has a policy of prudent liquidity risk management ensuring that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

At 30 June 2013 the Group had no undrawn committed facilities and cash of \$7.5 million to cover short term funding requirements. At balance date the debt maturity profile on the Group's financial liabilities was 0.8 years (30 June 2012: 1.8 years). Further information of the debt profile of the Group's financial liabilities is disclosed in notes 22 and 26.

2 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate risk

The Groups interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings and cash balances. Borrowings are at variable interest rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The potential impact of a change in interest rates by +/-1% on profit and equity has been disclosed in a table in note 26.

Other markets risk

Trafalgar does not have any material exposure to any other market risks such as currency risk or equity price risk.

(d) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes. The Group uses a variety of methods to calculate the value of financial instruments and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined by reference to the market value of the swaps. The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate for similar financial instruments.

(e) Capital Management

Under the direction of the Board, the Group manages its capital structure to safeguard the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to security holders through the optimisation of net debt and total equity balances.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends and distributions paid to security holders, return capital to Securityholders, issue new stapled securities, purchase the Group's own securities on the market, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its related entities are subject to externally imposed capital requirements with the exception of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited (TMIL). In accordance with TMIL's Australian Financial Services Licence it has appointed custodians to hold all the scheme property and other assets of the registered schemes (i.e. TPF 12 and TOF 4) for which it is Responsible Entity and as such must maintain Net Tangible Assets of 0.5% of the value of the assets of those registered schemes.

Capital structure is monitored on an ongoing basis using the Debt to Total Assets ratio - 30 June 2013: 16.3% (30 June 2012: 33.4%).

Investment properties constitute a significant proportion of the Group's assets constituting 85.3% of total assets at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: 80.7%).

There were no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year.

3 Dividends & Distributions

The Company did not declare any dividends during the year ended 30 June 2013 or up to the date of this report (30 June 2012: Nil). Distributions declared by TPF 12 & TOF 4 during the year were as follows:

	For the year ended		For th	For the year ended	
	30 June 2013		30) June 2012	
	\$'000	Cents per Unit	\$'000	Cents per Unit	
Distribution - paid 21 July 2011 (TPF 12)	-	-	17,070	20.00	
Distribution - paid 16 September 2011 (TOF 4)	-	-	4,267	5.00	
Distribution - paid 11 November 2011 (TOF 4)	-	-	5,975	7.00	
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012 (TOF 4)	-	-	3,414	4.00	
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012 (TPF 12)	-	-	2,561	3.00	
Distribution - paid 28 June 2012 (TPF 12)	-	-	11,096	13.00	
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012 (TPF 12)	1,707	2.00	-	-	
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012 (TOF4)	427	0.50	-	-	
Distribution - paid 13 March 2013 (TPF 12)	3,414	4.00	-	-	
Distribution - paid 31 July 2013 (TPF 12)	853	1.00	-	-	
	6,401	7.50	44,383	52.00	

4 Rental Income

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Rental income	9,782	10,671
Amortisation of capitalised lease incentives	(3)	(30)
	9,779	10,641

The group leases out its investment properties under operating leases.

5 Finance Income & Finance Expenses

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Interest income - banks	318	602
Finance income	318	602
Interest paid and payable - banks	1,521	2,479
Amortisation of financing costs	139	175
Finance expenses	1,660	2,654
Net financing costs	1,342	2,052

6 Employee Benefits Expense

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Wages and salaries	1,060	1,298
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds	73	87
Other associated employee expenses	31	51
Increase (decrease) in liability for annual leave	8	(11)
Increase in liability for long service leave	13	21
Provisions for retentions and or redundancies	-	297
	1,185	1,743

The provision for retentions and or redundancies includes a proportion of the monies which accrue to the key management personnel as outlined in item 1.1 of the Remuneration report contained in the Directors report.

7 Auditors' Remuneration

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Group, KPMG, and its related practices for audit and non audit services provided during the year are set out below:

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
Audit services	\$	\$
KPMG Australia		
Audit and review of financial reports	131,074	198,822
Other assurance services	17,500	25,505
	148,574	224,327
Other services		,
KPMG Australia		
Taxation compliance services	45,522	103,178
	194,096	327,505

8 Income Tax (benefit) Expense

Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
(Loss) profit before income tax expense	(6,320)	1,468
Tax (benefit) expense at the corporate rate of 30%	(1,896)	440
Increase (decrease) in income tax due to:		
Amortisation of simplification costs	(38)	(38)
Inter corporate dividend	-	(3)
Non deductible expenses	1	1
Trust income exempt from tax	1,412	(640)
Tax (income) loss not taxable	521	240
Income tax expense	-	-

The Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited tax group has carried forward tax losses of approximately \$6.3 million (30 June 2012: \$6.4 million). Deductible tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation, however the continuity of ownership test or same business test will need to be satisfied before these tax losses can be utilised. A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the tax losses and timing differences as it is not probable that the carried forward tax losses will be able to be utilised in the future.

The proposed acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group (refer to note 34), if approved by TGP Securityholders, may affect the ability of the tax group to satisfy the continuity of ownership and or the same business tests.

9 Assets Held for Sale

At balance date, 158 Hume Street Goulburn was being actively marketed for sale. As a consequence, the property has been classified to an Asset held for sale as at 30 June 2013. The carrying value of the property is based on an independent valuation as at 30 June 2013.

In the prior year, 2B Factory Street Granville was being actively marketed for sale. During the current year the Group exchanged a contract for the sale of the property which subsequently settled in August 2013. The fair value of the property has been assessed based on the exchanged sales contract.

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Balance at 1 July	5,100	-
Reclassification from investment properties (refer note 17)	4,750	5,098
Reclassification of receivables - straight lining of rental income	(2)	2
Sale deposit released to the Group	(265)	-
Balance at 30 June	9,583	5,100
2B Factory Street, Granville NSW	4,833	5,100
158 Hume Street, Goulburn NSW	4,750	-
	9,583	5,100

10 Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the consolidated entity's operating segments, which are the primary basis of segment reporting. An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those of other operating segments. The primary segments are based on the consolidated entity's management and internal reporting structure.

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate expenses.

Operating segments

The consolidated entity comprises the following main business segments, based on its management reporting system:

- investment in income producing commercial and industrial properties
- property development (direct and financing)

Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the underlying assets. All segments operate solely within Australia.

10 Segment Reporting (continued)

	Property	Property		
30 June 2013	Development	Investment	Other	Consolidated
Primary reporting business segments	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
Revenue				
External segment revenue		9,779	-	9,779
Total revenue	-	9,779	-	9,779
Other income				
Fair value adjustment of investment properties	-	(10,156)	-	(10,156)
Finance income	-	140	178	318
Other income		41	-	41
Total other income	-	(196)	178	(18)
				_
Result				
Segment result	(277)	(2,541)	178	(2,640)
Unallocated corporate expenses			_	(2,020)
Operating loss			_	(4,660)
Finance costs				(1,660)
Income tax benefit			_	
Loss for the year			-	(6,320)
			- -	
Segment assets	-	56,452	-	56,452
Investments accounted for using the equity method	800	-	-	800
Unallocated assets			_	5,536
Total assets				62,788
			-	
Segment liabilities	-	2,094	-	2,094
Unallocated liabilities			<u>-</u>	10,832
Total liabilities			_	12,926
			_	
Net assets				49,862

10 Segment Reporting (continued)

30 June 2012 Primary reporting business segments	Property Development \$'000	Property Investment \$'000	Other \$'000	Consolidated \$'000
Revenue				
External segment revenue	-	10,641	-	10,641
Total revenue	-	10,641	-	10,641
Other income				
Share of profit on investments accounted for using the equity method	11	-	-	11
Fair value adjustment of investment properties	-	(2,377)	-	(2,377)
Finance income	-	263	339	602
Other income		166	71	237
Total other income	11	8,693	410	9,114
Result				
Segment result	205	6,515	410	7,130
Unallocated corporate expenses				(3,008)
Operating profit				4,122
Finance costs				(2,654)
Income tax expense				-
Profit for the year				1,468
Segment assets	3,698	81,303	-	85,001
Investments accounted for using the equity method	2,591	-	-	2,591
Unallocated assets				9,843
Total assets				97,435
Segment liabilities	-	1,437	-	1,437
Unallocated liabilities				33,415
Total liabilities				34,852
Net assets			,	62,583

11 Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per stapled security is calculated using the profit (loss) attributable to the stapled Securityholders of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited and the weighted average number of stapled securities.

	30 June 2013 cents	30 June 2012 cents
Basic and diluted earnings per security	(7.4)	1.7
	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Basic and diluted earnings		
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to the stapled		
Securityholders of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited	(6,320)	1,468
	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	000's	000's
Weighted average number of stapled securities (basic and diluted)		
Weighted average number of stapled securities	85,352	85,352

Earnings per company share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per company share is calculated using the profit (loss) attributable to the Shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of stapled securities.

	30 June 2013 cents	30 June 2012 cents
Basic and diluted earnings per share	(1.9)	(0.8)
	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Basic and diluted earnings Loss for the year attributable to the ordinary		
Shareholders of the Company	(1,613)	(666)

11 Earnings per Share (continued)

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	000's	000's
Weighted average number of stapled securities (basic and diluted)		
Weighted average number of ordinary shares	85,352	85,352

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Bank balances	7,516	10,714
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows	7,516	10,714

13 Trade and Other Receivables

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Trade receivables	106	920
GST receivables	103	236
	209	1,156

14 Other Financial Assets

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Vendor property financing		
Opening balance	560	700
Loan advances	5	10
Loan repayments	(451)	-
Impairment provision	(114)	(150)
Closing balance	-	560
Development property financing		
Opening balance	3,138	4,697
Loan advances	171	165
Loan repayments	(2,368)	(550)
Impairment provision	(941)	(1,174)
Closing balance	-	3,138
	-	3,698

15 Other Current Assets

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Prepayments	333	466
Other	330	18
	663	484

16 Available for Sale Investments

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Unlisted shares in corporations		
Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 5 Pty Limited	-	429
Return of equity	-	(433)
Reversal of impairment provision	-	4
	-	-

Trafalgar Corporate Group held a 15% interest in Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 5 Pty Limited.

17 Investment Properties

Property	Туре	Ownership	Acquisition Date	Cost Including All Additions \$'000	Independent Valuer	Independent Valuation \$'000	Date of Latest Independent Valuation	Consolidated Carrying Amount 30 June 2013 \$'000	Consolidated Carrying Amount 30 June 2012 \$'000
4 Mort Street, Canberra ACT ³	B Grade office building	100%	20 July 2005					-	16,000
12-22 Woniora Road , Hurstville NSW	A Grade office building	100%	20 July 2005	50,230	Colliers	44,000	30 June 2013	44,000	51,500
2B Factory Street, Granville NSW ¹	Modern office and warehouse industrial complex	100%	20 July 2005	7,024	Jones Lang LaSalle	5,100	30 June 2011	-	-
158 Hume Street, Goulburn NSW ²	Logistic distribution centre	100%	1 July 2007	13,663	LandMark White	4,750	30 June 2013	-	6,000
Total				70,917		53,850		44,000	73,500
				ets (including stra			se incentives)	(1,094) 42,906	<u>(1,752)</u> 71,748

^{1 2}B Factory Street, Granville NSW was reclassified to Assets held for sale during the 2012 financial year (refer to note 9).

The basis of valuation of the investment properties is fair value being the amount for which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for a similar property in the same location and condition and subject to a similar lease.

^{2 158} Hume Street, Goulburn NSW was reclassified to Assets held for sale during the year (refer to note 9).

^{3 4} Mort Street, Canberra ACT was sold on 31 May 2013.

17 Investment Properties (continued)

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Balance at 1 July	71,748	79,183
Capital expenditure	-	40
Reclassification to assets held for sale (refer to note 9)	(4,750)	(5,098)
Disposal of investment properties	(13,936)	-
Fair value adjustments	(10,156)	(2,377)
Balance at 30 June	42,906	71,748

The carrying amount of investment properties is the fair value of the property, determined by the Directors, having regard to 30 June 2013 independent valuations prepared by valuers with appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. Fair values were determined using the capitalisation of net passing income and the discounted cash flow methods and also having regard to recent market transactions of similar properties in the same location and condition and with a similar lease profile.

12-22 Woniora Road Hurstville NSW, the only investment property not held for sale at 30 June 2013, is a large commercial office building with a single tenant, the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). The current lease is for 10 years with 2 x 5 year options. The first term of the lease is due to expire in February 2015 with the ATO required to advise by February 2014 if they wish to exercise the first 5 year option. The Group is in discussions with the tenant with respect to their intentions. A material change (positive or negative) in the fair value of the ATO Hurstville building may occur depending on the actual outcome of the current lease negotiations.

The weighted average capitalisation rate applicable to the investment portfolio (including investment properties classified as held for sale) at 30 June 2013 is 9.39% (30 June 2012: 9.59%), while the weighted average lease expiry is 1.31 years (30 June 2012: 2.25 years).

The Group had no commitments (30 June 2012: no commitments) for the refurbishment of investment properties contracted for as at 30 June 2013.

Leases as Lessor

The investment properties (including investment properties classified as held for sale) are leased to tenants under long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases of the investment properties not recognised in the financial statements are receivable as follows:

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Less than one year	7,851	9,003
Between one and five years	4,992	17,903
More than five years	-	108
	12,843	27,014

18 Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

	Own			
	30 June	30 June 30 June		30 June
	2013	2012	2013	2012
	%	%	\$'000	\$'000
Partnership interests				
Renewing Homebush Bay Partnership	50	50	800	2,536
The Frances Park Partnership	-	50		55
			800	2,591
Associate interests				
TW Property Developments Pty Limited	-	50	-	-
			800	2,591

Share of profit accounted for using the equity method included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Partnership interests	-	-
Associate interests	-	11
	-	11
Reversal of impairment of equity accounted investments	778	1,514

Reversal of impairment of equity accounted investments was primarily due to the Renewing Homebush Bay development project achieving lower costs than projected on its infrastructure works as well as effective capital management of surplus cash balances.

Investments in partnerships

Renewing Homebush Bay

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited, through various wholly owned subsidiary companies, holds a 50% interest in the Renewing Homebush Bay Partnership. The other 50% is held by entities associated with Brookfield Multiplex Group. The principal activity of the partnership is residential property development.

The Frances Park Partnership

TC Frances Park Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Trafalgar Corporate Pty Limited, held a 25% interest in the Frances Park Partnership. TCG (Frances Park) Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited, also held a 25% interest in the Frances Park Partnership. The principal activity of the partnership was residential property development. The partnership was dissolved in the 2013 financial year.

18 Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method (continued)

The Consolidated entity's share of the partnership's results consists of:

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Revenues from ordinary activities	-	27,420
Expenses from ordinary activities	-	(27,420)
Net profit - accounted for using equity method	-	-

The Consolidated entity's share of the partnership's assets and liabilities consists of:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Balance Sheet		
Current assets	2,534	6,994
Total assets	2,534	6,994
Current liabilities	1,734	4,089
Total liabilities	1,734	4,089
Net assets of the partnership	800	2,905
Impairments not recognised in the partnership and other reconciling items	-	(314)
Net assets - accounted for using equity method	800	2,591

Movements in the carrying amount of investments in partnerships:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Carrying amount at 1 July	2,591	20,540
Equity returned during the year	(2,569)	(19,463)
Reversal of impairment of equity accounted investment in partnerships	778	1,514
Carrying amount at 30 June	800	2,591

18 Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method (continued)

Investments in associates

TW Property Developments Pty Limited

TCG (Bonnyrigg) Pty Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited, held a 50% interest in TW Property Developments Pty Limited. The other 50% was held by one external investor. The principal activity of TW Property Developments Pty Limited was residential property development. TW Property Developments Pty Limited ceased activities in the 2012 financial year and was wound up during the current period.

The Consolidated entity's share of associate's results consists of:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Revenues from ordinary activities	-	11
Expenses from ordinary activities	-	-
Net profit - accounted for using equity method	-	11

The Consolidated entity's share of associate's assets and liabilities consists of:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Balance Sheet		
Current assets	_	-
Total assets	-	-
Current liabilities		_
Total liabilities	-	-
Net assets - accounted for using equity method		-

Movements in the carrying amount of investments in associates:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Carrying amount at 1 July	-	-
Share of associate interests net profit	-	11
Dividend payments	-	(11)
Carrying amount at 30 June	-	_

19 Property, Plant and Equipment

	Furniture & Fittings \$'000	Office Equipment \$'000	Total \$'000
30 June 2013			
Opening net book value - 1 July 2012	170	22	192
Additions	-	5	5
Disposals	-	-	-
Impairment of property, plant and equipment	(139)	(12)	(151)
Depreciation charge	(20)	(9)	(29)
Closing net book value - 30 June 2013	11	6	17
Balance as at 30 June 2013			
Cost	385	447	832
Additions	-	5	5
Disposals	-	-	-
Impairment of property, plant and equipment	(139)	(12)	(151)
Accumulated depreciation	(235)	(434)	(669)
Net book value	11	6	17

30 June 2012			
Opening net book value - 1 July 2011	197	30	227
Additions	-	-	-
Disposals	-	-	-
Depreciation charge	(27)	(8)	(35)
Closing net book value - 30 June 2012	170	22	192
Balance as at 30 June 2012			
Cost	385	447	832
Additions	-	-	-
Disposals	-	-	-
Accumulated depreciation	(215)	(425)	(640)
Net book value	170	22	192

20 Other Non Current Assets

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Receivable - straight lining of rental income	1,094	1,738
Capitalised lease incentives	-	14
	1,094	1,752

21 Trade and Other Payables

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Trade payables	10	2
Non trade payables	1	2
Accruals	402	301
GST payables	236	374
	649	679

22 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Current		
Secured borrowings	10,261	8,100
Capitalised finance costs	(24)	-
	10,237	8,100
Non current		
Secured borrowings	-	24,462
Capitalised finance costs	-	(131)
	-	24,331
	10,237	32,431

22 Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings (continued)

Secured borrowings

The loan facility is being provided by Westpac Banking Corporation ("the Bank") via a special purpose borrowing vehicle (Trafalgar Twelve Four Finance Pty Limited) which is 50% owned by each of TPF 12 and TOF 4. Through this vehicle the facility is available to both Funds and as at 30 June 2013, TOF 4 had no drawings and TPF 12 had drawn \$10.26 million. The facility limit is \$10.26 million. The loan facility expiry is March 2014.

During the year, the Group reduced its loan facility by \$22.3 million by utilising the \$5.5 million security term deposit for debt reduction, net proceeds from the sale of investment properties of \$13.8 million and making four quarterly loan repayments of \$750,000 (\$3 million per annum).

The Group intends on repaying the loan facility in full prior to the loan expiry in March 2014 by utilising net proceeds from the sale of investment properties held for sale at 30 June 2013 and continuing to make quarterly loan repayments of \$750,000.

The loan facility is secured by a mortgage in favour of the Bank over each core investment property held by the Group and a fixed and floating charge over the present and future real property assets of the Funds, their subsidiaries and Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited. The facility is subject to floating interest rates. The floating interest rate paid at 30 June 2013 was 5.17%.

Funding Covenants

At the date of this report, the Group complies with all debt covenants and did at all times during the year.

23 Provisions

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Current		
Employee benefits	354	645
Distributions payable	853	-
	1,207	645
Non current		
Employee benefits	-	168
	-	168

The distribution payable was paid to Securityholders on 31 July 2013.

24 Other Current Liabilities

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Rental income invoiced in advance	833	929
	833	929

25 Issued Capital

	Numbe	er of Securities	Iss	Issued capital		
	30 June	30 June	30 June	30 June		
	2013	2013 2012		2012		
			\$'000	\$'000		
Ordinary Securities						
Issued and fully paid	85,351,913	85,351,913	(3,092)	(3,092)		
	85,351,913	85,351,913	(3,092)	(3,092)		

		Number of securities	Issue price	Issued capital \$'000	
Movement of fully pair	d securities issued				
1 July 2012	Opening balance	85,351,913	-	(3,092)	
30 June 2013	Closing balance	85,351,913		(3,092)	
Movement of fully paid securities issued					
1 July 2011	Opening balance	85,351,913	-	(3,092)	
30 June 2012	Closing balance	85,351,913		(3,092)	

Minority interests - TOF 4 and TPF 12

As a result of the stapling in July 2005, TOF 4 and TPF 12 were stapled to the Company. When a new entity is formed to issue equity instruments to effect a business combination, one of the combining entities is to be identified as the acquirer on the basis of pertinent facts and circumstances regarding control. For the stapled group, Trafalgar Corporate Pty Limited (now wholly owned by TCGL) was deemed the acquirer and the acquisition of TOF 4 and TPF 12 formed the minority interest.

26 Financial Instruments

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

	Carry	Carrying Amount		
	30 June	30 June		
	2013	2012		
	\$'000	\$'000		
Cash and cash equivalents	7,516	10,714		
Trade and other receivables	209	1,156		
Other financial assets - current				
Vendor property financing	-	560		
Development property financing	-	3,138		
	7,725	15,568		
		·		

Financial Instruments (continued) 26

Ageing analysis

The ageing of the Group's loans and receivables at reporting date was:

	Gross 30 June 2013 \$'000	Impairment 30 June 2013 \$'000	Gross 30 June 2012 \$'000	Impairment 30 June 2012 \$'000
Not past due	209	-	1,014	-
Past due 0-30 days	-	-	29	-
Past due 31-180 days	-	-	113	-
Past due 181-365 days	-	-	-	-
More than one year	-	-	8,142	(4,444)
	209	-	9,298	(4,444)

Liquidity risk

The following are contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments (using existing variable interest rates):

30 June 2013	Carrying Amount \$'000	Contractual Cash flow \$'000	Less than 1 Year \$'000	Between 1-5 Years \$'000	Over 5 Years \$'000
Trade and other payables	890	890	890	-	-
Interest bearing loans	10,261	10,473	10,473	-	-
	11,151	11,363	11,363	-	-
30 June 2012					
Trade and other payables	1,257	1,257	1,257	-	-
Interest bearing loans	32,562	35,306	9,777	25,529	-
	33,819	36,563	11,034	25,529	-

26 Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity period is:

		Fixed interest	Fixed interest	Fixed interest		
	Floating	maturing	maturing	maturing	Non-	
	interest	in 1 year	in 1 to 5	more than	interest	
	rate	or less	years	5 years	bearing	Total
	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
30 June 2013						
Financial assets						
Cash and cash equivalents	4,516	3,000				7,516
Trade and other receivables					209	209
Total financial assets	4,516	3,000	-	-	209	7,725
Weighted average interest rate	2.62%	4.20%				
Financial liabilities						
Trade and other payables					(890)	(890)
Interest bearing loans	(10,261)					(10,261)
Total financial liabilities	(10,261)	-	-	-	(890)	(11,151)
Weighted average interest rate	5.17%					
Net financial assets (liabilities)	(5,745)	3,000	-	-	(681)	(3,426)
30 June 2012						
Financial assets						
Cash and cash equivalents	5,214	5,500				10,714
Trade and other receivables					1,156	1,156
Other financial assets					3,698	3,698
Total financial assets	5,214	5,500	-	-	4,854	15,568
Weighted average interest rate	3.27%	4.67%				
Financial liabilities						
Trade and other payables					(1,257)	(1,257)
Interest bearing loans	(32,562)					(32,562)
Total financial liabilities	(32,562)	-	-	-	(1,257)	(33,819)
Weighted average interest rate	5.84%					
Net financial assets (liabilities)	(27,348)	5,500	-	-	3,597	(18,251)

Net fair values

The Group's financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortised cost and these assets are not traded in an organised financial market and the carrying values approximate fair values.

Carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, other financial assets, payables and bank loans are stated at net realisable value, impairments have been made where applicable.

26 Financial Instruments (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in the statement of financial position represent the Group's exposure to credit risk in relation to these assets.

Summarised interest rate sensitivity analysis

The table below illustrates the potential impact a change in interest rates by +/-1% would have had on the Group's profit and equity.

		Change in interest rate -1%		Change in interest rate 1%	
	Carrying amount	Profit	Equity	Profit	Equity
	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000	\$'000
30 June 2013					
Financial assets					
Cash and cash equivalents	7,516	(45)	(45)	45	45
Financial liabilities					
Interest bearing loans	(10,261)	103	103	(103)	(103)
Total increase (decrease)	_	58	58	(58)	(58)
30 June 2012					
Financial assets					
Cash and cash equivalents	10,714	(52)	(52)	52	52
Financial liabilities					
Interest bearing loans	(32,562)	326	326	(326)	(326)
Total increase (decrease)	_ _	274	274	(274)	(274)

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

30 June 2013	Level 1 \$'000	Level 2 \$'000	Level 3 \$'000	Total \$'000
Current assets Available for sale investments	-	-	-	-
	-	-	-	-

26 Financial instruments (continued)

30 June 2012	Level 1 \$'000	Level 2 \$'000	Level 3 \$'000	Total \$'000
Current assets				
Available for sale investments		-	-	-
		-	-	-

The following table is a reconciliation of the movements in Available for sale investments classified as Level 3.

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Opening Balance 1 July	-	429
Fair value movement through statement of profit or loss	-	4
Return of equity	-	(433)
Closing balance 30 June	-	-

Fair value of Level 3 items is determined through financial modelling including sensitivity analysis. The modelling includes consideration of key factors including sales, costs, financing charges, time and any other factors which have the potential to influence the fair value of the investment. The valuation of the Level 3 investment does not contain any significant reasonably possible alternatives and hence no further sensitivity analysis has been disclosed.

27 Capital and Other Commitments

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Capital expenditure commitments		
Investment properties		
Contracted but not provided for and payable		
Within one year	-	-
	-	-
Joint venture commitments		
Share of capital commitments of the joint venture		
Contracted but not provided for and payable		
Within one year	59	1,331
	59	1,331

73

27 Capital and Other Commitments (continued)

Investment Properties

The Group has no commitments (30 June 2012: no commitments) for the refurbishment of investment properties contracted for as at 30 June 2013.

Share of capital commitments of the joint venture

Renewing Homebush Bay Pty Limited (a 50/50 Joint Venture with Brookfield Multiplex Group) has entered into various agreements, primarily involved with civil works and landscaping at the Rhodes Shoreline site, to be undertaken over the next 12 months totalling \$0.06 million (30 June 2012: \$1.331 million). The joint venture has sufficient cash reserves to meet its financial obligations.

28 Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Group Obligations

In accordance with the Stapling Deed executed on 8 June 2005, each party to the deed (i.e. the Company, TPF 12 and TOF 4) have undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the other party and or its subsidiaries.

29 Consolidated Entities

	Country of incorporation	Owne	rship erest
	moorporduori	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
Parent entity		2010	2012
Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited (TCGL)			
Subsidiaries of TCGL			
TC (Dorcas St) Pty Limited	Australia	0%	100%
TCG (Frances Park) Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
Trafalgar Corporate (Sales) Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TCG (Bonnyrigg) Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
Trafalgar Corporate Pty Limited (TCL)	Australia	100%	100%
TC Group Developments Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC Rhodes Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 2 Lessor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 2 Lessor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 2 Contractor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 2 Contractor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 4 Lessor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 4 Lessor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 4 Contractor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 4 Contractor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 6 Lessor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 6 Lessor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 6 Contractor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 6 Contractor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 7 Lessor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 7 Lessor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 7 Contractor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 7 Contractor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 8 Lessor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 8 Lessor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 8 Contractor Holdings Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC RHB Stage 8 Contractor Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
Subsidiaries of TCL			
Sydney Airport Centre Pty Limited	Australia	0%	100%
TC (Cannon Park) Pty Limited	Australia	0%	100%
TC Frances Park Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC (TOF No. 5) Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC Renewing Homebush Bay Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
TC (RHB) Pty Limited	Australia	100%	100%
Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited (TMIL)	Australia	100%	100%
, ,			
Stapled entities			
Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
MBC Trust	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
Portal Newstead Fund	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
Portal Newstead Pty Limited	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
Trafalgar Twelve Four Finance Pty Limited	Australia	Stapled	Stapled
Trafalgar Twelve Four Note Issuer Pty Limited	Australia	Stapled	Stapled

30 Business Combinations

There was no business acquisitions in the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

31 Reconciliation of Net (loss) Profit to Net Cash Inflows from Operating Activities

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Net (loss) profit	(6,320)	1,468
Non cash flows in profit from ordinary activities		
Amortisation of borrowing costs	127	175
Depreciation	29	35
Impairment reversal of equity accounted investments	(778)	(1,514)
Impairment reversal of available for sale investments	-	(4)
Impairment of third party loans receivable	1,055	1,324
Impairment of other non current assets	151	-
Net loss on fair value of investment properties	10,156	2,377
Straight lining rental income and incentives	120	51
Change in operating assets and liabilities		
Decrease (increase) in receivables and prepayments	796	(739)
Decrease in creditors and accruals	(605)	(56)
Net cash flow from operating activities	4,731	3,117

32 Related Parties

The following were key Non-Executive and Executive personnel of the consolidated entity at any time during the reporting period and unless otherwise indicated were key management personnel for the entire period.

	Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited
Name	Period of Directorship
Non-Executive	
Garry S Charny	Appointed Director 13 November 2008, Resigned 21 August 2013
John R Green	Appointed Director 1 October 2009, Resigned 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 1 May 2012, Resigned 19 March 2013
Graham E Lenzner	Appointed Director 9 May 2013
Tony R Pitt	Appointed Director 19 November 2009
David van Aanholt (Chairman)	Appointed Director 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 19 March 2013

Executives

Braith H Williams (Chief Executive Officer) - Redundant on 29 March 2013

Peter J Norris (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel compensation included in employee benefits expense (refer to Remuneration report) is as follows:

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
Short term employee benefits	1,005,519	1,130,822
Long term employee benefits	9,093	10,955
Post employment benefits	51,951	64,600
	1,066,563	1,206,377

Individual Director and Executive compensation disclosures

Information regarding individual Director and Executive compensation is provided in the Remuneration report section of the Directors' Report.

Apart from the details disclosed in the Remuneration report, no key management personnel have entered into a material contract with the Company or the consolidated entity since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving key management personnel interests existing at year end.

32 Related Parties (continued)

Movement in shares

Peter Norris

The movement during the reporting period in the number of stapled securities in Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited held, directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties, is as follows:

	Held at 1 July 2012	Acquisitions	Sales	Held at 30 June 2013
Fully paid securities				
Directors				
Garry S Charny	-	-	-	-
John R Green (Resigned 19 March 2013)	-	-	-	-
Graham E Lenzner (Appointed 9 May 2013)	-	-	-	-
Tony R Pitt *	21,479,009	2,560,556	-	24,039,565
David van Aanholt	-	-	-	-
Executives				
Braith Williams (Redundant 29 March 2013)	33,000	-	(33,000)	-
Peter Norris	-	-	-	-
	Held at	Acquisitions	Sales	Held at
	1 July 2011			30 June 2012
Fully paid securities				
Directors				
Garry R Sladden (Resigned 1 May 2012)	-	-	-	n/a
Garry S Charny	-	-	-	-
John R Green	-	-	-	-
Tony R Pitt *	20,000,000	1,479,009	-	21,479,009
Executives				
Braith Williams	33,000	-	-	33,000

^{*} Pentagon Financial Services Pty Limited ("PFS") is the registered holder of 21,479,009 securities. TT Investments Pty Limited indirectly owns 100% of PFS. TT Investments Pty Limited ATF the TT Investment Trust is the registered holder of 2,560,556 securities. Tony Pitt is a Director of TT Investments Pty Limited and a beneficiary of the TT Investment Trust.

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and conditions.

32 Related Parties (continued)

Non key management personnel disclosure

(a) Transactions with significant shareholders

Head Office lease

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited entered into a 7 year lease for its head office premises at 111 Harrington Street Sydney with Harrington Properties Pty Limited, a company controlled by Mr Robert Whyte (a substantial Securityholder of the Group during the period). The lease expired in July 2012 and the Group has remained in the premises and is currently on a month to month lease. During the year lease payments totalled \$96,824 (30 June 2012: \$348,174).

Sale of 4 Mort Street, Canberra ACT

The Group sold 4 Mort Street, Canberra ACT to Gladiator Investments Pty Limited, a company controlled by Mr Robert Whyte (a substantial Securityholder of the Group during the period) for \$14.75 million, following approval by Securityholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 May 2013.

(b) Parent entity

The legal parent entity is Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited

(c) Subsidiaries, interests in joint ventures, partnerships and associates

Interests in subsidiaries, joint ventures, partnerships and associates are set out in notes 29 and 18 respectively.

(d) Transactions with related parties

Transactions with subsidiaries

The following transactions occurred with subsidiaries during the year.

	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000
Loans advanced from the Company	6,147	6,743
Loans advanced to the Company	(29,021)	(28,314)
Dividend income	-	303
Impairment of related party loans	-	-
Debt forgiveness benefit on related party loans	-	-

Related party loan between TCGL and its subsidiaries

Loans advanced from the Company to subsidiaries are 'at call'. The Company does not anticipate that it will call on these loans within the next 12 months and as such these loans have been classified as non current in note 33. The Directors have assessed the net recoverability of loans with subsidiaries and have impaired the portion considered to be uncollectable at balance date being Nil (30 June 2012: Nil).

32 Related Parties (continued)

Related party loan between TPF 12 and TCGL

In accordance with the Stapling Deed executed on 8 June 2005, each party to the deed (TCGL, TPF 12 and TOF 4) have undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the other party and or its subsidiaries. Following the Group's announcement that it is withdrawing from development activities and with an expected reduction in the level of investment and return from the current development activities, Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited will not be able to fully service the inter entity loan owed to TPF 12. At balance date, as a consequence of reviewing the recoverability of the loan, the Directors decided to further impair the portion considered to be unrecoverable. This impairment amounted to \$3.01 million (30 June 2012: \$0.67 million). These loans and the related impairments are eliminated on consolidation.

Transactions with partnerships and associates

The consolidated entity receives income from the partnerships and associates in the form of management fees and profit from operations (refer to note 18). The following transactions occurred with partnerships and associates during the year:

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Share of profit (loss)		
The Frances Park Partnership	-	-
Renewing Homebush Bay Partnership	-	-
TW Property Developments Pty Limited	-	11

33 Parent Entity Disclosures

As at, and throughout, the financial year ended 30 June 2013, the parent company of the Group was Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited.

	Company		
	30 June 2013 \$'000	30 June 2012 \$'000	
Result of the parent company			
Loss for the year	(2,712)	(3,439)	
Other comprehensive income	-	-	
Total comprehensive loss for the year	(2,712)	(3,439)	
Financial position of the parent company at year end			
Current assets	4,820	6,381	
Total assets	11,244	13,577	
Current liabilities	11,651	11,328	
Total liabilities	29,587	29,208	
Total equity of the parent company comprising of			
Issued capital	(8,203)	(8,203)	
Retained earnings (losses)	(10,140)	(7,428)	
Total equity	(18,343)	(15,631)	

Parent company contingencies

The parent company does not have any contingencies at 30 June 2013 (30 June 2012: Nil).

Parent entity guarantees in respect of debts of its subsidiaries

In accordance with the Stapling Deed executed on 8 June 2005, each party to the deed (i.e. the Company, TPF 12 and TOF 4) have undertaken to guarantee the obligations of the other party and or its subsidiaries.

34 Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

2B Factory Street Granville

Settlement of the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville occurred on 14 August 2013 with net proceeds being used for debt reduction within the Group.

There are no further matters or circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in this financial report or current and future financial periods.

- 1 In the opinion of the Directors of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("the Company"):
 - (a) the consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 33 to 82, and the Remuneration report in the Directors' report contained in pages 25 to 29, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and
 - (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
 - (b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
- The Directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2013.
- The Directors draw attention to note 1 (a) to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Independent auditor's report to the members of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited (the company), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 34 comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors' declaration of the Group comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the *Corporations Act 2001* and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. In note 1(a), the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 101 *Presentation of Financial Statements*, that the financial statements of the Group comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and Australian Accounting Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Group's financial position and of its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

. .

- (i) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
- (ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
- (b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1(a).

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 6 to 14 of the directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2013. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with Section 300A of the *Corporations Act 2001*. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the remuneration report of Trafalgar Corporate Group for the year ended 30 June 2013, complies with Section 300A of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

KPM6

KPMG

Paul Thomas Partner

Sydney

27 August 2013

Security Holder Information

The information below was prepared as at 11 September 2013

Largest 20 holders of ordinary fully paid securities

	Number of	Percentage of issued fully paid
Holder Name	securities	securities
PENTAGON FINANCIAL SERVICES PTY LIMITED < PENTAGON INVESTMENT A/C>	21,479,009	25.165
JP MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED <cash a="" c="" income=""></cash>	16,859,823	19.753
NATIONAL NOMINEES LIMITED	3,693,548	4.327
RBC INVESTOR SERVICES AUSTRALIA NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <bkcust a="" c=""></bkcust>	3,026,239	3.546
TT INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <tt a="" c="" investment=""></tt>	2,560,556	3.000
NETWORK INVESTMENT HOLDINGS PTY LTD	2,000,000	2.343
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED	1,697,681	1.989
PRUDENTIAL NOMINEES PTY LTD	1,500,000	1.757
GEMTRICK PTY LTD < JOHN HARRIS SUPER FUND A/C>	1,420,000	1.664
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED - A/C 3	1,123,947	1.317
HORRIE PTY LTD	1,076,000	1.261
SMALLCO INVESTMENT MANAGER LTD <the a="" c="" cut=""></the>	1,073,705	1.258
STILWOOD CUSTODIANS PTY LTD	984,000	1.153
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED <colonial a="" c="" first="" inv="" state=""></colonial>	963,468	1.129
HILLMORTON CUSTODIANS PTY LTD <the a="" c="" lennox="" unit=""></the>	869,222	1.018
UBS NOMINEES PTY LTD	794,367	0.931
BNP PARIBAS NOMS PTY LTD <drp></drp>	684,956	0.803
EQUITY TRUSTEES LIMITED <sgh ic2e=""></sgh>	500,000	0.586
WILH WILHELMSEN INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED <wilhelmsen a="" c="" investments=""></wilhelmsen>	475,000	0.557
MR RONALD WILLIAM HERBERT & MRS MARGARET MARY HERBERT	442,800	0.519
Total Securities held by top 20 holders	63,224,321	74.075%
Total Ordinary Fully Paid securities	85,351,913	

Distribution of Security holders	Number of Holders	Total Securities
1-1,000	91	60,561
1,001-5,000	317	977,423
5,001-10,000	220	1,772,450
10,001-100,000	358	11,431,568
100,001 and over	61	71,109,911
Totals	1,047	85,351,913

Security Holders with less than a Marketable Parcel

There were forty (40) security holders with less than a marketable parcel of the above securities.

Substantial Security holders

Name of Security holder	Number of securities held
TT INVESTMENTS PTY LIMITED	24,039,565
FIRST SAMUEL LIMITED	16,985,030
GREIG & HARRISON PTY LTD	5,574,348
CONTANGO ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED	4,471,191

Tax Statements

Securityholders have received a comprehensive tax statement which summarises distributions paid/declared during Fiscal 2013. This statement includes information which will assist Securityholders in completing their income tax return.

Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12

ARSN 104 552 598 and its Controlled Entity

Annual Concise Report

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Relationship of the Concise Financial Report to the Full Financial Report

The concise financial report is an extract from the full financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013. The financial statements and specific disclosures included in the concise financial report have been derived from the full financial report.

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 and its Controlled Entity as the full financial report. Further information can be obtained from the full financial report.

The full financial report and the independent auditors report will be sent to members on request, free of charge. Please call (02) 9252 4211 to request a copy. Alternatively, you can access both the full financial report and the concise financial report via the internet at our Investors' centre on our website www.trafalgarcorporate.com

Directors Report

The Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 ("the Fund" or "TPF 12"), present their report together with the concise financial report of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 and its controlled entity (together "the consolidated entity") for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the independent auditors report thereon. The consolidated entity forms part of the stapled entity, Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ("the Group").

Directors

The Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12, at any time during or since the end of the financial year are ("the Directors"):

	Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited
Name	Period of Directorship
Non-Executive	
Garry S Charny	Appointed Director 13 November 2008, Resigned 21 August 2013
John R Green	Appointed Director 1 October 2009, Resigned 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 1 May 2012, Resigned 19 March 2013
Graham Lenzner	Appointed Director 9 May 2013
Tony R Pitt	Appointed Director 19 November 2009
David van Aanholt (Chairman)	Appointed Director 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 19 March 2013

Formation of Trafalgar Corporate Group

The stapled securities of the Group are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange under the code TGP and comprise one unit in each of the Fund and Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 ("TOF 4") and one share in Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited. The units and share are stapled together and cannot be traded separately. Each entity forming part of TGP continues as a separate legal entity in its own right under the Corporations Act 2001 and is therefore required to comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements under the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards.

Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity holds an Australian Financial Services Licence No 221474 issued pursuant to Section 913B of the *Corporations Act 2001* and the Fund was registered as a Managed Investment Scheme on 22 December 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the consolidated entity is ownership of income producing commercial properties within Australia. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the financial year.

The consolidated entity did not have any employees during the year.

Review of Operations

The annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013 has been prepared in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("AIFRS"). The financial performance of the consolidated entity is as follows:

	For the year ended 30 June 2013	For the year ended 30 June 2012
Revenue and other income (\$'000)	9,162	9,895
(Loss) profit attributable to unitholders of the Fund (\$'000)	(6,733)	2,058
Distributions provided for or paid by the Fund (\$'000)	5,975	30,727

	As at 30 June 2013	As at 30 June 2012
Net assets (\$'000)	38,095	50,803
Number of fully paid ordinary units on issue	85,351,913	85,351,913

The Directors have undertaken an assessment of the fair value of the consolidated entity's investment property assets at 30 June 2013 having regard to independent valuations. The Directors have determined a decrease in the carrying amount of the investment property assets being brought to account in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of \$8.91 million for the year (30 June 2012: decrease of \$1.37 million).

The following major financial transactions occurred during the financial year:

- (a) The loan facility with Westpac Banking Corporation, provided to the consolidated entity via a special purpose borrowing vehicle, was reduced from \$32.56 million to \$10.26 million during the year.
- (b) The Directors have undertaken an assessment of the recoverability of the loan to Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited resulting in an additional impairment of \$3.01 million.
- (c) Settlement of the sale of 4 Mort Street Canberra for \$14.75 million occurred on 31 May 2013 with the majority of net proceeds being used for debt reduction.
- (d) The Fund declared and paid a total of 7 cents per security in distributions during the year. Further information in regards to these capital distributions is provided below.

Distributions

Distributions declared and paid by TPF 12, directly to the unitholders during the year were as follows:

	Fort	he year ended	For th	e year ended
	30	30 June 2013		June 2012
	\$'000	Cents per Unit	\$'000	Cents per Unit
Distribution - paid 21 July 2011	-	-	17,070	20.00
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012	-	-	2,561	3.00
Distribution - paid 28 June 2012	-	-	11,096	13.00
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012	1,707	2.00	-	-
Distribution - paid 13 March 2013	3,414	4.00	-	-
Distribution - paid 31 July 2013	854	1.00	-	-
	5,975	7.00	30,727	36.00

Strategy and Outlook

The key focus is to improve the weighted average lease expiry of the ATO Hurstville investment property prior to offering the property for sale.

State of Affairs

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the financial year under review other than those mentioned above or elsewhere in the Directors report.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

The Group continues to implement its strategy to close the gap between the security price and net tangible assets by pursuing an orderly and opportunistic realisation of the Group's investment property assets. The extension of the lease to the Australian Taxation Office ("ATO") on the Woniora Road, Hurstville property is key to this strategy. The current 10 year lease (with 2 x 5 year options) expires February 2015. The ATO is required to advise by February 2014 if they wish to exercise the first 5 year option. The Group is in discussions with the tenant with respect to their intentions. A material change (positive or negative) in the fair value of the ATO Hurstville building may occur depending on the actual outcome of the current lease negotiations.

The Board remains focused on maximising the value of the Group's securities. As there is currently no timetable or certainty around reaching agreement with the ATO on a new lease, it may be sometime before a realisation strategy is possible for this asset. Therefore, apart from the realisation strategy, the Board may also consider other strategies to improve security price if it is in the best interest of Securityholders. In this regard, please refer to the events subsequent to reporting date, where further details are provided about the Group's potential acquisition of the 360 Capital Property Group.

In the opinion of the Directors, disclosure of any further information on future developments and results would be unreasonably prejudicial to the interests of the Fund.

Environmental Issues

The consolidated entity's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth, State or Territory.

Directors and Auditors Indemnification

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited continues to provide Directors' and Officers' liability insurance. A premium of \$61,524 was paid for the 12 months ended 30 June 2014. This policy indemnifies the Directors and Officers for up to \$20 million. The consolidated entity has not indemnified the auditor.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

There are no matters or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in future financial years.

Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 93 and forms part of the Director's report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Rounding Off

The consolidated entity is of a kind of entity referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Director's report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

This report is made with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No.12

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 there have been:

- (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPM6

KPMG

Paul Thomas *Partner*

Sydney.

27 August 2013

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Revenue and other income		
Rent from investment properties	9,041	9,729
Interest income	121	166
Total revenue and other income	9,162	9,895
Rates, taxes and other property outgoings	(1,740)	(1,673)
Responsible entity fees	(377)	(1,364)
Management and administration expenses	(178)	(108)
Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment properties	(8,906)	(1,372)
Net loss on disposal of investment properties	(20)	-
Impairment of related party loan	(3,014)	(666)
Results from operating activities	(5,073)	4,712
Finance expenses	(1,660)	(2,654)
(Loss) profit for the year	(6,733)	2,058
Other comprehensive income for the year	<u>-</u>	-
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year attributable to unitholders	(6,733)	2,058

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	Issued capital \$'000	Undistributed loss \$'000	Total equity \$'000
Balance as at 1 July 2012	77,483	(26,680)	50,803
Loss for the year / Total comprehensive loss Distributions to unitholders	- (5,975)	(6,733) -	(6,733) (5,975)
Balance as at 30 June 2013	71,508	(33,413)	38,095

	Issued capital \$'000	Undistributed loss \$'000	Total equity \$'000
Balance as at 1 July 2011	108,210	(28,738)	79,472
Profit for the year / Total comprehensive income Distributions to unitholders	(30,727)	2,058 -	2,058 (30,727)
Balance as at 30 June 2012	77,483	(26,680)	50,803

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Current assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	1,932	641
Trade and other receivables	95	1,004
Other current assets	193	5,709
Total current assets	2,220	7,354
Non current assets		
Investment properties	42,906	65,748
Due from related entities	4,331	9,641
Other non current assets	1,094	1,752
Total non current assets	48,331	77,141
Total assets	50,551	84,495
Current liabilities		
Trade and other payables	330	395
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	10,237	8,100
Provision for distribution	854	-
Due to related entities	265	-
Other current liabilities	770	866
Total current liabilities	12,456	9,361
Non current liabilities		24 221
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	-	24,331
Total non current liabilities		24,331
Total liabilities	12,456	33,692
i otal nabilities	12,430	33,032
Net assets	38,095	50,803
Issued capital	71,508	77,483
Undistributed loss	(33,413)	(26,680)
	(,)	(,/
Total equity attributable to unitholders	38,095	50,803
1		

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Current assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	1,932	641
Trade and other receivables	95	1,004
Other current assets	193	5,709
Total current assets	2,220	7,354
Non current assets		
Investment properties	42,906	65,748
Due from related entities	4,331	9,641
Other non current assets	1,094	1,752
Total non current assets	48,331	77,141
Total assets	50,551	84,495
Current liabilities		
Trade and other payables	330	395
Interest bearing loans and borrowings	10,237	8,100
Provision for distribution	854	-
Due to related entities	265	-
Other current liabilities	770	866
Total current liabilities	12,456	9,361
Non current liabilities		
Interest bearing loans and borrowings		24,331
Total non current liabilities	-	24,331
Total liabilities	12,456	33,692
Net assets	38,095	50,803
Issued capital	71,508	77,483
Undistributed loss	(33,413)	(26,680)
Total equity attributable to unitholders	38,095	50,803

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Cash flows from operating activities		
Cash receipts from customers	10,630	10,173
Cash paid to suppliers	(3,006)	(4,239)
Interest received	116	163
Interest paid	(1,540)	(2,555)
Net cash from operating activities	6,200	3,542
Cash flows from investing activities		
Payments for investment properties and improvements	-	(27)
Net proceeds from sale of investment properties	14,452	25
Net cash from investing activities	14,452	(2)
Cash flows from financing activities		
Repayment of borrowings	(22,301)	(13,208)
Amounts received from related parties	8,061	31,029
Distributions paid	(5,121)	(30,727)
Net cash from financing activities	(19,361)	(12,906)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held	1,291	(9,366)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year	641	10,007
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	1,932	641

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

1 Basis of Preparation of Concise Financial Report

This concise financial report relates to the consolidated entity consisting of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 and the entity it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2013. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated below.

The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports (AASB 1039). The financial statements and specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been derived from the full financial report. The concise financial report does not, and cannot be expected to provide, as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the consolidated entity as the full financial report.

The consolidated entity is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating the "rounding off" of amounts in the financial reports. Amounts in the concise financial report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars.

The Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 is Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited. The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 4, 111 Harrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000. The Fund was formed on 23 April 2003 and was registered as a managed investment scheme on 7 May 2003.

The Annual Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars.

2 Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

There are no matters or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in future financial years.

In the opinion of the Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity for the Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 (the Fund), the accompanying concise financial report of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 comprising Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 and the entity it controlled for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 as set out on pages 94 to 99:

- a) has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report for the financial year; and
- b) complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Independent auditor's report to the members of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 Report on the concise financial report

We have audited the accompanying concise financial report of the Group comprising Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 (the Fund) and the entity it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and related notes 1 and 2 derived from the audited financial report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013. The concise financial report does not contain all the disclosures required by Australian Accounting Standards and accordingly, reading the concise financial report is not a substitute for reading the audited financial report.

Directors' responsibility for the concise financial report

The directors of the Responsible Entity of the Fund, being Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the concise financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 *Concise Financial Reports* and the *Corporations Act 2001* and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the concise financial report.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the concise financial report based on our audit procedures which were conducted in accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 810 *Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Standards*. We have conducted an independent audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, of the financial report of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 for the year ended 30 June 2013. We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial report in our report dated 27 August 2013. The Australian Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report for the year is free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the concise financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the risk of material misstatement of the concise financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the concise financial report in order to design procedures, that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Our procedures included testing that the information in the concise financial report is derived from, and is consistent with, the financial report for the year, and examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures which were not directly derived from the financial report for the year. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the concise financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.



• We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the concise financial report of Trafalgar Platinum Fund No. 12 and its controlled entity for the year ended 30 June 2013 complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

KPMG

KPMG

Paul Thomas

Partner

Sydney

27 August 2013

Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4

ARSN 107 416 348 and its Controlled Entities

Annual Concise Report

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Relationship of the Concise Financial Report to the Full Financial Report

The concise financial report is an extract from the full financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013. The financial statements and specific disclosures included in the concise financial report have been derived from the full financial report

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 and its Controlled Entities as the full financial report. Further information can be obtained from the full financial report.

The full financial report and the independent auditors report will be sent to members on request, free of charge. Please call (02) 9252 4211 to request a copy. Alternatively, you can access both the full financial report and the concise financial report via the internet at our Investor Centre on our website at www.trafalgarcorporate.com

Director's Report

The Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 ("the Fund" or "TOF 4"), present their report together with the concise financial report of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 and its controlled entities (together "the consolidated entity") for the year ended 30 June 2013 and the independent auditors report thereon. The consolidated entity forms part of the stapled entity, Trafalgar Corporate Group ("the Group").

Directors

The Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4, at any time during or since the end of the financial year are ("the Directors"):

	Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited
Name	Period of Directorship
Non-Executive	
Garry S Charny	Appointed Director 13 November 2008, Resigned 21 August 2013
John R Green	Appointed Director 1 October 2009, Resigned 19 March 2013
	Appointed Chairman 1 May 2012, Resigned 19 March 2013
Graham Lenzner	Appointed Director 9 May 2013
Tony R Pitt	Appointed Director 19 November 2009
David van Aanholt (Chairman)	Appointed Director 19 March 2013
,	Appointed Chairman 19 March 2013

Formation of Trafalgar Corporate Group

The stapled securities of the Group are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange under the code TGP and comprise one unit in each of the Fund and Trafalgar Platinum Fund No 12 ("TPF 12") and one share in Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited. The units and share are stapled together and cannot be traded separately. Each entity forming part of TGP continues as a separate legal entity in its own right under the Corporations Act 2001 and is therefore required to comply with the reporting and disclosure requirements under the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards.

Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity holds an Australian Financial Services Licence No 221474 issued pursuant to Section 913B of the *Corporations Act 2001* and the Fund was registered as a Managed Investment Scheme on 7 May 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the consolidated entity is ownership of income producing commercial and industrial properties within Australia. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the financial year.

The consolidated entity did not have any employees during the year.

Review of Operations

The annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2013 has been prepared in accordance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ("AIFRS"). The financial performance of the consolidated entity is as follows:

	For the year ended 30 June 2013	For the year ended 30 June 2012
Revenue and other income (\$'000)	766	1,009
Loss attributable to unitholders of the Fund (\$'000)	(988)	(590)
Distributions provided for or paid by the Fund (\$'000)	427	13,656

	As at 30 June 2013	As at 30 June 2012
Net assets (\$'000)	10,359	11,774
Number of fully paid ordinary units on issue	85,351,913	85,351,913

The Directors have undertaken an assessment of the fair value of the consolidated entity's investment property assets at 30 June 2013 having regard to independent valuations. The Directors have determined a decrease in the carrying amount of the investment property assets being brought to account in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of \$1.25 million for the year (30 June 2012: decrease of \$1.01 million).

The following major financial transactions occurred during the financial year:

- (a) The Fund exchanged a contract for the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville for \$5.3 million with settlement expected in August 2013
- (b) The Fund declared and paid a total of 0.50 cents per security in distributions during the year. Further information in regards to these distributions is provided below.

Distributions

Capital distributions declared and paid by TOF 4, directly to unitholders during the year were as follows:

	For the year ended 30 June 2013			For the year ended 30 June 2012	
	\$'000	Cents per Unit	\$'000	Cents per Unit	
Distribution - paid 16 September 2011	-	-	4,267	5.00	
Distribution - paid 11 November 2011	-	-	5,975	7.00	
Distribution - paid 14 February 2012	-	-	3,414	4.00	
Distribution - paid 14 November 2012	427	0.50	-	-	
	427	0.50	13,656	16.00	

Strategy and Outlook

The key focus for the Fund is to complete the realisation of the investment property portfolio.

State of Affairs

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the financial year under review other than those mentioned above or elsewhere in the Directors report.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

The Group continues to implement its strategy to close the gap between the security price and net tangible assets by pursuing an orderly and opportunistic realisation of the Group's investment property assets. The extension of the lease to the Australian Taxation Office ("ATO") on the Woniora Road, Hurstville property (held by TPF 12) is key to this strategy. The current 10 year lease (with 2 x 5 year options) expires February 2015. The ATO is required to advise by February 2014 if they wish to exercise the first 5 year option. The Group is in discussions with the tenant with respect to their intentions. A material change (positive or negative) in the fair value of the ATO Hurstville building may occur depending on the actual outcome of the current lease negotiations.

The Board remains focused on maximising the value of the Group's securities. As there is currently no timetable or certainty around reaching agreement with the ATO on a new lease, it may be sometime before a realisation strategy is possible for this asset. Therefore, apart from the realisation strategy, the Board may also consider other strategies to improve security price if it is in the best interest of Securityholders. In this regard, please refer to the events subsequent to reporting date, where further details are provided about the Group's potential acquisition of the 360 Capital Property Group.

Environmental Issues

The consolidated entity's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth, State or Territory.

Directors and Auditors Indemnification

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited continues to provide Directors and Officers liability insurance. A premium of \$61,524 was paid for the 12 months ended 30 June 2014. This policy indemnifies the Directors and Officers for up to \$20 million. The consolidated entity has not indemnified the auditor.

Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

2B Factory Street Granville

Settlement of the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville occurred on 14 August 2013 with net proceeds of \$4.8 million being used for debt reduction within the Group.

There are no further matters or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in future financial years.

Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

The lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 108 and forms part of the Director's report for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Rounding Off

The consolidated entity is of a kind of entity referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Director's report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

This report is made with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

To: the directors of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No.4

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 there have been:

- (i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- (ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG

KPMG

Paul Thomas

Partner

Sydney

27 August 2013

	30 June	30 June
	2013	2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Revenue and other income		
Rent from investment properties	747	912
Interest income	19	97
Total revenue and other income	766	1,009
	(225)	(00.4)
Rates, taxes and other property outgoings	(285)	(384)
Responsible entity fees	(129)	(197)
Management and administration expenses	(90)	(80)
Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment properties	(1,250)	(1,005)
Net profit on disposal of investment properties	-	67
Results from operating activities	(988)	(590)
Finance expenses	-	-
Loss for the year	(988)	(590)
Other comprehensive income for the year	-	-
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to unitholders	(988)	(590)

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	Issued capital \$'000	Undistributed loss \$'000	Total equity \$'000
Balance as at 1 July 2012	26,606	(14,832)	11,774
Loss for the year / Total comprehensive loss	-	(988)	(988)
Distribution to unitholders	(427)	-	(427)
Balance as at 30 June 2013	26,179	(15,820)	10,359
Balance as at 1 July 2011	40,262	(14,242)	26,020
Loss for the year / Total comprehensive loss	-	(590)	(590)
Distribution to unitholders	(13,656)	-	(13,656)
Balance as at 30 June 2012	26,606	(14,832)	11,774

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Current assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	507	718
Trade and other receivables	71	78
Assets held for sale	9,583	5,100
Due from related entities	265	-
Other current assets	72	54
Total current assets	10,498	5,950
Non current assets		
Investment properties	_	6,000
Total non current assets	-	6,000
Total assets	10,498	11,950
Current liabilities		
	76	113
Trade and other payables Other current liabilities	63	63
Total current liabilities	139	176
Total current habilities		170
Total liabilities	139	176
Net assets	10,359	11,774
Issued capital	26,179	26,606
Undistributed loss	(15,820)	(14,832)
Total equity attributable to unitholders	10,359	11,774
roal oquity databatable to unitroducto	10,000	

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

	30 June 2013	30 June 2012
	\$'000	\$'000
Cash flows from operating activities		
Cash receipts from customers	835	778
Cash paid to suppliers	(638)	(872)
Interest received	19	97
Net cash from operating activities	216	3
Cash flows from investing activities		
Payments for investment properties and improvements	-	(13)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties	265	22,017
Net cash from investing activities	265	22,004
Cash flows from financing activities		
Amounts paid to related parties	(265)	(7,721)
Distributions paid	(427)	(13,656)
Net cash from financing activities	(692)	(21,377)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents held	(211)	630
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year	718	88
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	507	718

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

1 Basis of Preparation of Concise Financial Report

This concise financial report relates to the consolidated entity consisting of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 30 June 2013. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated below.

The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance with the *Corporations Act 2001* and Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports (AASB 1039). The financial statements and specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been derived from the full financial report. The concise financial report does not, and cannot be expected to provide, as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing activities of the consolidated entity as the full financial report.

The consolidated entity is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating the "rounding off" of amounts in the financial reports. Amounts in the concise financial report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars.

The Responsible Entity of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 is Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited. The Responsible Entity's registered office is Level 4, 111 Harrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000. The Fund was formed on 23 April 2003 and was registered as a managed investment scheme on 7 May 2003.

The Annual Financial Report is presented in Australian dollars.

2 Events Subsequent to Reporting Date

Acquisition of 360 Capital Property Group

On 20 August 2013, the Group entered into a Security Sale Agreement to acquire 100% of 360 Capital Property Group ("360 Capital") through a scrip-for-scrip offer to 360 Capital Securityholders (with a cash election) (the "Acquisition"). 360 Capital is a diversified real estate investment, assets and funds management group.

Mr Tony Pitt, a substantial Securityholder & Non-Executive Director of the Group owns (through TT Investments Pty Limited) 21.1% of 360 Capital and has accepted the scrip offer.

On 21 August 2013, the Group completed a \$70.8 million equity raising via a fully underwritten conditional institutional placement of TGP securities at \$0.59 per security (the "Capital Raising"). The Capital Raising proceeds will be used to fund the cash election of the Acquisition and other funds management initiatives of the Group.

Both the Acquisition and the Capital Raising (together the "Transaction") are conditional on TGP Securityholder approval at an extraordinary general meeting scheduled for 24 September 2013 and re-compliance by TGP with Chapters 1 & 2 of the ASX Listing Rules. Independent expert, Lonergan Edwards & Associates Limited has concluded that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable for TGP's non-associated Securityholders. The Independent Committee of TGP Directors (David van Aanholt & Graham Lenzner) established to oversee the due diligence and to consider this Transaction recommends TGP Securityholders vote in favour of the Transaction, in the absence of a superior proposal. A Product Disclosure Statement & Prospectus was lodged with the ASX and the Australian Securities & Investments Commission on 21 August 2013.

2B Factory Street Granville

Settlement of the sale of 2B Factory Street Granville occurred on 14 August 2013 with net proceeds of \$4.8 million being used for debt reduction within the Group.

There are no further matters or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that have significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, or the state of the consolidated entity's affairs in future financial years.

In the opinion of the Directors of Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, the Responsible Entity for the Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 (the Fund), the accompanying concise financial report of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 comprising Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No 4 and the entities it controlled for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 as set out on pages 109 to 113:

- c) has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report for the financial year; and
- b) complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

David van Aanholt

Chairman

Graham E Lenzner

L. L.

Director

Dated at Sydney this 27th day of August 2013



Independent auditor's report to the members of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 Report on the concise financial report

We have audited the accompanying concise financial report of the Group comprising Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 (the Fund) and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and related notes 1 and 2 derived from the audited financial report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013. The concise financial report does not contain all the disclosures required by Australian Accounting Standards and accordingly, reading the concise financial report is not a substitute for reading the audited financial report.

Directors' responsibility for the concise financial report

The directors of the Responsible Entity of the Fund, being Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited, are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the concise financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 Concise Financial Reports and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the concise financial report.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the concise financial report based on our audit procedures which were conducted in accordance with Auditing Standard ASA 810 Engagements to Report on Summary Financial Standards. We have conducted an independent audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, of the financial report of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 for the year ended 30 June 2013. We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial report in our report dated 27 August 2013. The Australian Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report for the year is free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the concise financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the risk of material misstatement of the concise financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the concise financial report in order to design procedures, that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Our procedures included testing that the information in the concise financial report is derived from, and is consistent with, the financial report for the year, and examination on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures which were not directly derived from the financial report for the year. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the concise financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 *Concise Financial Reports*.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the *Corporations Act 2001*.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the concise financial report of Trafalgar Opportunity Fund No. 4 and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2013 complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 *Concise Financial Reports*.

KPM6

KPMG

Paul Thomas

Partner

Sydney

27 August 2013

Corporate Directory

Corporate/Responsible Entity

Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ACN 113 569 136

Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited ACN 090 664 396 AFSL 221474

Level 4, 111 Harrington Street Sydney NSW 2000 Telephone 02 9252 4211

Directors and Officers

Non-executive Directors

David M van Aanholt - Independent Chairman Graham E Lenzner - Independent Non-executive Director Tony R Pitt - Non-executive Director

Officers

Peter J Norris - Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Custodians

BNY Trust Company of Australia Limited ACN 050 294 052 Level 15, 20 Bond Street SYDNEY NSW 2000

Australian Executor Trustees Limited

ACN 007 869 794 Level 22, 207 Kent Street SYDNEY NSW 2000

Unit/Share Registry

Boardroom Pty Limited
ACN 003 209 836
Level 7, 207 Kent Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000
Telephone (02) 9290 9600
Email enquiries@boardroomlimited.com.au

Westpac Banking Corporation Limited

Auditor

Bankers

KPMG

Disclaimer

All information in this report is in Australian dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Whilst every effort is made to provide accurate and complete information, Trafalgar does not warrant or represent that the information in this Annual Report is free from errors or omissions or suitable for your intended use. Subject to any terms implied by law, Trafalgar accept no responsibility for any loss, damage, cost or expense (whether direct or indirect) incurred by you as a result of any error, omission or misrepresentation of information in this report.



Trafalgar Corporate Group Limited ACN 113 569 136

Trafalgar Managed Investments Limited ACN 090 664 396

www.trafalgarcorporate.com